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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 

As at 31st December NOTE 2024 2023

Rs. (Restated)Rs.

ASSETS

Property Plant and Equipment 16 2,104,735,674                  2,054,608,762                  

Right-of-use Assets 17 88,810,046                       49,721,211                        

Lease Assets paid in Advance 18 19,731,800                       20,509,274                       

Capital Work in Progress 39,816,321                       95,840,425                        

Intangible Assets -Software 19 5,688,499                         5,171,925                         

Income Tax recoverable -                                    510,726,482                     

Deferred Tax Assets 20 394,894,508                     238,869,772                     

Total Non- Current Assets 2,653,676,848                  2,975,447,850                   

Current Assets  

Inventories  -  SPC 21 4,479,239,824                  6,919,844,576                   

Stock in Transit   -  DHS 22 357,093,423                     2,369,595,569                   

Trade & Other Receivables 23 37,801,776,607                38,801,758,400                 

Prepayments 24 101,206,021                     112,379,093                      

Cash and Cash Equivalents 25 9,087,579,645                  5,539,030,064                   

Total Current Assets 51,826,895,520                53,742,607,703                 

Total Assets 54,480,572,368                56,718,055,553                

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Contributed Capital 31 59,055,258                       59,055,258                       

Retained Earnings 13,398,307,717                12,531,862,061                

Revaluation Reserves 32 71,350,931                       71,350,931                       

Building Renovation Reserve 32 300,000,000                     -                                    

General Reserves 32 66,061,447                       66,061,447                       

Total Equity 13,894,775,352                12,728,329,697                

Non- Current Liabilities   

Retirement Benefit Obligation 26 679,507,396                     417,463,649                     

Lease Liabilities 17.1 68,991,891                       36,604,255                       

Long Term Loan 27 3,550,522,197                  5,447,844,429                  

Total Non- Current Liabilities 4,299,021,483                  5,901,912,333                  

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 28 14,008,712,717                17,387,707,916                 

Income tax Payable 394,180,870                     -                                     

Lease Liabilities 17.1 32,046,834                       22,921,431                       

Current Financial Liabilities 29 19,872,901,778                18,616,639,731                 

Long Term Loans 27 1,978,933,333                  2,060,544,445                  

Total Current Liabilities 36,286,775,532                38,087,813,523                 

Total Equity & Liabilities 54,480,572,368                56,718,055,553                

  

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.

Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board by,  

 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 5 to 50 form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATE PHARMACEUTICALS CORPORATION OF SRI LANKA

......................................... 

Dr. Manuj C Weerasinghe 

Chairman 

......................................... 

K.M.D.R. Dasanayake 

General Manager 

......................................... 

M.L.Subasinghe Arachchi 

Managing Director 

......................................... 

Nishathi Devasurendra 

Actg. D.G.M. - Finance 



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

Contributed General Accumulated Total

Capital Reserves Profit

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 01st January 2022 59,055,258 66,061,447 -                     -                     13,590,891,445 13,716,008,150

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Treasury Levy Paid -                     -                     (350,000,000)     (350,000,000)     

Net Profit for the year -                     -                     644,723,214      644,723,214      

Revaluation gain on P.P.E (Motor Vehicles) 71,350,931        -                     -                     71,350,931        

Gain/ losses on defined benefit plan   -                     -                     86,102,461        86,102,461        

* Correction of understated direct settlements made by World Bank and ADB (net) -                     (64,350,060)       (64,350,060)       

*Change in accounting policy in accounting MSD deductions (net) -                     132,024,320      132,024,320      

*Correction of understated overdraft interest (net) -                     (2,250,868,593)  (2,250,868,593)  

* Revision of estimated error in depreciation (net) -                     (6,628,920)         (6,628,920)         

* Surcharge tax payable for the year 2020/2021 accrued in 2024 and paid in installments as agreed with IRD (146,714,954)     (146,714,954)     

* CIT surcharge paid in 2024 for the Y/A 2020/2021 (7,042,318)         (7,042,318)       

*Correction of understated supplying and fixing cost of laboratory furniture.  Net.( Note a) 18,098,963        18,098,963        

Balance as at 31st December 2022 59,055,258 66,061,447 71,350,931 -                     11,646,235,559 11,842,703,194

Balance as at 01st January 2023 59,055,258 66,061,447 71,350,931 -                     11,646,235,559 11,842,703,194

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  

Net Profit for the year -                     -                     773,534,817      773,534,817      

Gain/ losses on defined benefit plan   ( Note 26.3) -                     -                     112,091,686      112,091,686      

Balance as at 31st December 2023 59,055,258 66,061,447 71,350,931 -                     12,531,862,061 12,728,329,697

Balance as at 01st January 2024 59,055,258 66,061,447 71,350,931 -                     12,531,862,061 12,728,329,697

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  

Building Renovation Reserve 300,000,000      (300,000,000)     -                     

Treasury Levy Paid (232,060,445)     (232,060,445)     

Net Profit for the year -                     1,623,407,149   1,623,407,149   

Gain/ losses on defined benefit plan   ( Note 26.3) -                     -                     (224,901,049)     (224,901,049)     

Balance as at 31st December 2024 59,055,258 66,061,447 71,350,931 300,000,000 13,398,307,717 13,894,775,352

 

 

Note (a)  

Following adjustments have been made by restating the financial statement 2023 as given below:
Value

Tax effect @ 

30%
Net Balance

Rs. Rs. Rs.

i

25,855,661        7,756,698          18,098,963        

ii CIT surcharge paid for the year 2020/2021 -                     7,042,318          7,042,318          

  25,855,661        14,799,016.27   25,141,281        

STATE PHARMACEUTICALS CORPORATION OF SRI LANKA

Revaluation 

Reserve

Renovation 

Reserve

Correction of incorrectly understated supplying and fixing cost of laboratory furniture in the Quality 

Assurance Laboratory. 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31st December Note

 SPC                

OPERATIONS   

2024

DHS                

OPERATIONS          

2024

TOTAL                

OPERATIONS          

2024

TOTAL                

OPERATIONS          

2023

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Income
7

11,069,399,976    51,018,099,222    62,087,499,199    74,695,069,832    

Less

Direct Expenses - MSD
8

47,031,918,139    47,031,918,139    59,705,008,034    

Cost of Sales - SPC
9

7,955,603,067      -                       7,955,603,067      7,698,921,165      

Cost of Production - ORS
10

150,640,791         -                       150,640,791         146,654,024         

Gross Profit/ Surplus 
 

2,963,156,118      3,986,181,084      6,949,337,202      7,144,486,609      

Add: Other Operating Income 11 148,378,036         695,959,278         844,337,314         612,566,998         

Less    

Administrative Expenses 12 2,003,327,314      886,717,250         2,890,044,564      2,479,525,184      

Other Operating Expenses 13 533,580,485         144,432,529         678,013,014         727,141,123         

Operating Profit 574,626,355         3,650,990,582      4,225,616,937      4,550,387,299      

Less:  Finance Expenses 14 18,599,290           1,739,788,173      1,758,387,463      3,290,487,333      

Add: Finance Income ( Staff Loan) 7,181,360             -                       7,181,360             7,816,715             

Profit Before Tax 563,208,425         1,911,202,409      2,474,410,834      1,267,716,682      

Income Tax Expenses 15 295,375,616         555,628,068         851,003,685         494,181,865         

Profit After Tax 267,832,809         1,355,574,341      1,623,407,149      773,534,817         

Other Comprehensive Income:

Building Renovation Reserve (300,000,000)       -                       (300,000,000)       -                       

Gain/ Losses on defined benefit plan 26 (98,956,462)         (125,944,587)       (224,901,049)       112,091,686         

Total comprehensive income for the year (131,123,653)        -   1,229,629,753      1,098,506,100       -   885,626,503         

 

STATE  PHARMACEUTICALS CORPORATION OF SRI LANKA  
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

 For the year ended 31st December NOTE 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit before taxation, 2,474,410,834              1,267,716,682              

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 16 96,050,475                   111,464,247                 

Adj. Demolishing of Building  (Colombo 4) 16 3,331,556                     -                                

Gratuity provision for the year 26.3 91,761,334                   111,720,011                 

Lease amortisation 18 777,474                        777,474                        

Amortisation charges (software) 19 2,369,616                     1,771,117                     

Unrealized profit   7 63,203,497                   13,962,081                   

Lease Interest ( Osusala) 15,850,879                   12,411,244                   

Amortisation of (ROU) Assets 32,602,791                   27,428,158                   

Bad debt recoveries -SPC 13 7,559,838                     -                                

Provision for bad debts -DHS 11 (61,166,178)                  180,335,734                 

Stock losses 13 311,147                        1,227,912                     

Provision for damaged & outdated stock - SPC 13 277,002,116                 291,745,815                 

Provision for damaged & outdated stock DHS 13 -                                9,290,161                     

Interest expenses 14 1,739,789,215              3,274,891,468              

Operating profit before working capital changes 4,743,854,595              5,304,742,104              

Increase/Decrease in trade and other receivable 23 1,053,588,133              6,668,128,205              

Increase/Decrease in deposit & prepayments 24 11,173,073                   (61,582,023)                  

Increase/Decrease in inventories 2,100,087,992              (4,023,106,573)              

Increase/Decrease in Goods in Transit 22 2,012,502,146              (2,338,885,183)              

Increase/Decrease in trade & Other payables 28 (3,303,995,200)             (2,008,286,906)              

Cash generated from operations 6,617,210,739              3,541,009,623              

Income tax paid (102,121,069)                (901,384,981)                

Surcharge tax paid (75,000,000)                  -                                

Treasury Levy/ Dividend paid (232,060,445)                -                                

Gratuity paid 26 (54,618,637)                  (39,709,106)                  

Interest paid 14 (1,739,789,215)             (3,274,891,468)             

Cash flow before extraordinary items (2,203,589,366)             (4,215,985,555)             

Net cash from operating activities 4,413,621,373              (674,975,931)                

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 16 (149,508,943)                (18,504,808)                  

Increase/Decrease in work in progress 56,024,104                   (27,718,274)                  

Computer Software 19 (2,886,190)                    (194,490)                       

Net cash used in investing activities (96,371,030)                  (46,417,573)                  

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of long term loan 27 (1,978,933,344)             (1,978,933,344)             

Payments of Lease rent (46,029,465)                  (39,194,131)                  

Net cash used in financing activities (2,024,962,809)             (2,018,127,475)             

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,292,287,534              (2,753,483,060)             

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (13,077,609,667)           (10,324,126,607)           

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note A) (10,785,322,133)           (13,077,609,667)           

  

Note A : Cash and cash equivalents 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Cash in hand & at bank 25 8,836,812,142              5,539,030,064              

Treasury bill investment 25 250,767,504                 -                                

Bank overdraft 29 (19,872,901,778)           (18,616,639,731)           

Cash and cash equivalents (10,785,322,133)           (13,077,609,667)           

STATE  PHARMACEUTICALS  CORPORATION  OF SRI LANKA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

01. REPORTING ENTITY  

1.1 Domicile & Legal Form 

State Pharmaceuticals Corporation is a Government 

Corporation incorporated in 1971 under the State Industrial 

Corporations Act No. 49 of 1957 and domiciled in Sri Lanka. It 

is a Government Corporation located at No 75, Sir Baron 

Jayathilake Mawatha, Colombo 01. Presently operating its 

functions at “Mehewara Piyasa”  No 41. Kirula Road, Colombo 

05. 

 

1.2.Financial period 

The financial period of the Corporation represents a twelve 

month period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024. 

 

1.3. Principal activities and nature of operations 

The main functions are,  

a) Import, Purchase, Sales & Distribution of Pharmaceuticals 

and Health Care Items in the open market 

b) Import & Supply Pharmaceuticals and Health Care Items to 

the Department of Health Services 

c) Manufacturing and Marketing range of items including 

Jeevanee, Glucose & Benzyl Benzoate Cream 

d) Providing sample tests and laboratory services 

 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1. Statement of compliance 

The principle accounting policies adopted in preparing Financial 

Statements are given under Note 3-6 & such policies have been 

consistently applied unless otherwise stated. The financial 

statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance 

with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (commonly referred as 

“SLFRS”/ “LKAS”) laid down by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Sri Lanka. These financial statements comprise 

the statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive 

income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, 

and notes thereto. 

 

2.2. Responsibility for financial statements  

The Board of Directors of the Corporation acknowledges their 

responsibility for the financial statements. Any amendment to 

Financial Statements after issue lies with Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.3 Approval of financial statements  

The financial Statements were approved by the Board of 

Directors of the Corporation and authorized for issue on 

………..2025. 

 

2.4. Basis of measurement  

The Financial Statements of the Corporation have been prepared 

on the historical cost basis and applied consistently except for 

the following material items stated in the Statement of Financial 

Position.  

• Equipment, Furniture, Computers and Motor Vehicles which 

are measured at revalued amounts being the fair value of 

revaluation. 

• Retirement benefit obligations measured based on actuarial 

valuation.  

Where appropriate, the specific policies are explained in the 

succeeding notes. 

 

2.5 Functional and Presentation Currency 

The Corporation‟s financial statements are presented in Sri 

Lankan Rupees which is the organization‟s functional and 

presentation currency. 

 

Foreign currency transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional 

currency of the Corporation, using the exchange rates prevailing 

at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign 

exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 

transactions and from the re measurement of monetary items 

denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates 

are recognized in profit or loss. 

 

2.6. Comparative information  

Comparative information including quantitative, narrative and 

descriptive information is disclosed in respect of the previous 

period for all amounts reported in the financial statements, in 

order to enhance the understanding of the financial statements of 

the current period and to improve comparability. The 

comparative information has been reclassified where ever 

necessary to conform with the current year‟s classification in 

order to provide a better presentation. 
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2.7. Statement of Cash flows 

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the 

indirect method in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standard – LKAS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows), whereby gross 

cash receipts and gross cash payments of operating activities, 

financing activities and investing activities have been 

recognized. 

 

2.8. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and 

Assumptions. 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 

of the Corporation accounting policies and the reported amounts 

of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may 

differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying 

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the 

estimate is revised and in any future periods effected. 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that 

have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 

financial statements is included in following notes;  

 

Note 20  - Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities 

Note 21     - Provisions for impairment.  

Note 26  - Measurement of retirement benefit obligations; key 

actuarial assumptions. 

Note  18  - Leases 

Note 16  - Fare value measurement of Equipment, Furniture, 

Computers and Motor Vehicles   

Provisions: Provisions are recognized when Corporation has 

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event 

considering probability & based on reliable estimation. 

 

2.9. Measurement of Fair Values  

A number of the Corporation‟s accounting policies and 

disclosures require the measurement of fair value for both 

financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The current 

economic crisis in Sri lanka has resulted in significant volatility 

in the financial markets. However the corporation did not 

require reclassifying any of its financial assets as a result of the 

significant volatility created by the current economic crisis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Corporation regularly reviews significant unobservable 

inputs and valuation adjustments when applicable. If third party 

information is used to Measure fair values, The Corporation 

assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support 

the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of  

 

SLFRSs/LKASs, including the level in the fair value hierarchy 

in which such valuations should be classified. 

 

Further, the external valuers are involved for valuation of 

significant assets; Selection criteria for external valuers include 

market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether 

professional standards are maintained. The Corporation decides, 

after discussions with the external valuers, which valuation 

techniques and inputs to use for individual assets. 

 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the 

Corporation uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair 

values are categorized into different levels in a fair value 

hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 

follows: 

 

 • Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities 

 • Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 

that are observable for the asset or liability either 

directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 

prices) 

 • Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liabilities that are not based on 

observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 

 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or 

liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then 

the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the 

same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest input level 

that is significant to the entire measurement. Transfers between 

levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 

period during which the change has occurred. The Corporation 

does not hold any assets require fair value through P&L or fair 

value through OCI at present. 
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 

POLICIES     

3.1 Significant Accounting Policies     

The Accounting Policies applied by the Corporation are, unless 

otherwise stated, consistent with those used in the previous year. 

Previous year‟s figures and phrases have been rearranged, 

wherever necessary, to conform to the current year‟s 

presentation. 

 

3.2 Going Concern 

Financial Statements of the Corporation have been prepared on 

the basis of going concern. 

 

3.3. New Accounting Standards issued during the 

year/Changes to already existing Accounting Standards 

The amendments to the following existing Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standard which were effective from 01st January 

2025 did not have a material impact on the Financial 

Statements. 

 Lack of Exchangeability – Amendments to IAS 21 The 

Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 

 Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of 

Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial 

Instruments and IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

(W.e.f. 01.01.2026) 

 

3.4 Property Plant and Equipment 

3.4.1 Basis of recognition 

Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is probable 

that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow 

to the Corporation and the cost of the asset can be measured 

reliably. 

 

3.4.2. Basis of measurement  

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at 

cost/revaluation less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses. 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 

acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets 

includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs 

directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition 

for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the 

items and restoring the site at which they are located and 

capitalised borrowing costs. 

 

 

 

 

 

Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant 

or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if 

it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within 

the part will flow to the Corporation and its cost can be 

measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is 

derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs are 

recognized in the income statement as incurred. 

 

Cost model 

The Corporation applies the cost model to the land and buildings 

and records at cost of purchase together with any incidental 

expenses thereon less any accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses. 

 

Revaluation model 

The Corporation revalues its motor vehicles which are measured 

at its fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that 

the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which 

would be determined using fair value at the reporting date.  

 

On revaluation, any increase in the revaluation amount is 

credited to the revaluation reserve in equity unless it off sets a 

previous decrease in value of the same asset that was recognised 

in the statement of profit or loss. A decrease in value is 

recognised in the statement of profit or loss where it exceeds the 

increase previously recognised in the revaluation reserve. Upon 

disposal, any related revaluation reserve is transferred from the 

revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not taken into 

account in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. 

 

Equipment, Furniture and Computers are measured at fair value. 

Furniture, Equipment and Computers were re-valued by Mr. 

J.M. Senanayaka Bandara, Govt. Deputy Chief Valuer (Rtd.) as 

at 31.12.2015. 

 

3.4.3. Depreciation  

Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss on 

a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of an item of 

property, plant & equipment, in reflecting the expected pattern 

of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the 

asset. 
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The estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are 

as follows. 

Buildings       20- 40 years     

Plant & Machinery          8 years       

Motor Vehicles      10 years             

Bicycles           6 to 7 years   

Furniture & Fittings     10 years            

Computers      4 years  

Equipment       5 years      

 

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and 

ceases at the earlier of the dates on which the asset is classified 

as held for sale or is derecognized. The asset‟s residual values, 

useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 

financial year end and adjusted in accordance with LKAS 8. 

 

Accordingly, the residual value and useful life of the Furniture 

Fittings, Equipment, and Computers were reviewed, and the 

carrying value was adjusted prospectively as stated in section 37 

of LKAS 8.  

 

The effect of the depreciation account is given below, 

Current period     Rs. 4.2 Million 

Future periods     Rs. 9.7 Million 

  

3.4.4.  De-recognition  

An item of property, plant & equipment is de-recognized upon 

disposal of or when no future economic benefits are expected 

from its use or disposal. Gains and losses arising on de-

recognition of assets are determined by comparing the proceeds 

from the disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant & 

equipment and are recognized net within “Other Income” in 

profit or loss. 

 

3.4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Corporation assesses at each reporting date whether there is 

an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 

exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 

required, the Corporation estimates the asset‟s recoverable 

amount. 

 

3.5 Capital work in progress 

Capital expenses incurred during the year, which are not 

capitalized as at the balance sheet date are shown as Capital 

work in progress, whilst the capital assets which have been 

capitalized during the year and put to use have been transferred 

to Property Plant & Equipment. 

 

3.6 Intangible assets  

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 

recognition at cost.  Following initial recognition, intangible 

assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated 

intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are 

not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the income 

statement in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The Corporation‟s intangible assets are amortized using the 

straight-line method to write down the cost over its estimated 

useful economic lives. 

 

3.7 Leases 

Leases are recognized as right-of-use („ROU‟) asset and a 

corresponding liability at the date on which the leased asset is 

available for use by the Corporation. The Corporation has leases 

for the Osusala buildings, Stores facilities and some IT 

equipment. With the exception of short term leases and leases of 

low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the 

balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. 

 

 

(a) ROU assets 

ROU assets are initially measured at cost comprising the 

following: 

 The amount of the initial measurement of lease 

liability; 

 Any lease payments made at or before the 

commencement date less any lease incentive received; 

 Any initial direct costs; and  

 Decommissioning or restoration costs.  

 

ROU assets that are subsequently measured at cost, less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any). The 

ROU assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the 

asset‟s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.  

 

(b) Lease liabilities 

In accordance with provisions of SLFRS 16, lease liabilities 

were recognised and measured at the present value of the 

remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's 

increment borrowing rate, being the rate that the individual 

lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to 

obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a 

similar economic environment with similar terms, Security and 

conditions.  
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The Corporation presents the lease liabilities as a separate line 

item in the statement of financial position. Interest expense on 

the lease liability is presented within the finance cost in 

comprehensive income. 

 

(c) Re-measurement of lease liabilities  

The Corporation is also exposed to potential future increases in 

variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, which 

are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When 

adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rates take 

effect, the lease liability is re measured and adjusted against the 

ROU assets.  

 

(d) Lease payments not recognized as a liability  

The Corporation has elected not to recognize a lease liability for 

short term leases (leases of expected term of 12 months or less) 

or for leases of low value assets. Payments made under such 

leases are expensed on a straight-line basis. In addition, certain 

variable lease payments are not permitted to be recognized as 

lease liabilities and are expensed as incurred. 

 

3.8 Taxation 

3.8.1 Current taxation 

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to 

be recovered from or paid to the Taxation Authorities in respect 

of the current as well as prior years. The tax rate and tax laws 

used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or 

substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Accordingly, 

provision for taxation is made on the basis of the profit for the 

year as adjusted for taxation purposes in accordance with the 

provision of the Inland Revenue Act No: 24 of 2017 and the 

Amendments thereto, the rates specified in the act. Provision for 

the current year taxation made according to the accounting 

profit subject to the rate specified by act. 

 

3.8.2 Deferred taxation 

In respective of each type of temporary differences recognized 

in the Balance Sheet, were considered for the Deferred Tax 

Liabilities and Assets. Mainly, in Financial Statements Fixed 

Assets, Provision for Retiring Gratuity, Impairment on debtors, 

Provision for disputed items were considered. Deferred Tax 

Assets & Liabilities are measured at the Income Tax Rate. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 

reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 

all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.  

 

 

3.9 Inventories  

Inventories are recognized at cost or net realizable value, 

whichever is lower after making due allowance for obsolete and 

slow-moving items which are valued on a „First in first out‟ 

basis.  Stocks at Osusala outlets were measured, excluding the 

stock transfer margin which was worked out using an average 

margin of stock transferred from the Main stores to the Osusala 

outlet. 

The Corporation‟s Pricing Committee decides the price of drugs 

based on formula while considering market prices. 

 

3.9.1 Measurement of inventories 

Cost of Inventories – ORS 

Raw Materials  

Cost of purchases together with any incidental expenses.  

Work In progress 

Raw material cost and variable manufacturing expenses in full. 

Finished Goods 

Raw material cost and variable manufacturing expenses in full. 

 

3.10     Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank, 

Treasury bill investments, other short-term highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of twelve months or less. 

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current 

liabilities on the balance sheet. 

 

3.11     Research costs  

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect 

of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and 

understanding, is recognized in profit or loss when incurred. 

 

 

4 LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 

4.1 Retirement Benefit Obligations 

4.1.1 Defined benefit plan – Retirement Gratuity 

The Corporation is liable to pay Gratuity in terms of the 

Payment of Gratuity Act No.12 of 1983.The liability for gratuity 

to an employee arises only on completion of five years of 

continued service with the Corporation. This Liability 

recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of 

the defined benefit obligations at the balance sheet date 

estimated using the projected unit credit method. These benefits 

are not externally funded. 
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The Corporation recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising 

from defined benefit plans immediately in the other 

comprehensive income. 

An actuarial valuation was carried out by Mr. M. 

Poopalanathan, AIA, of Messrs.‟ Actuarial and Management 

Consultants (Pvt) Ltd., a firm of professional actuaries as at 31st 

December 2024. The assumptions based on which the results of 

the actuarial valuation were determined, are included in Note 26 

to the financial statements. 

 

4.1.2 Defined Contribution Plans- Employee Provident 

Fund & Employee Trust Fund 

The Corporation contributes to Employees' Provident Fund 

contribution and Employees' Trust Fund contribution is covered 

by relevant contribution funds in line with respective regulation. 

Obligations for contributions to the plans covering the 

employees are recognized as an expense in the income 

statement. 

 

Employees’ Provident Fund 

The Corporation and Employees contribute to provident fund at 

12% and 10% respectively on fixed salary except travelling 

allowance. 

 

Employees' Trust Fund 

The Corporation contributes 3% on fixed salary except 

travelling allowance, to the Employees' Trust Fund. 

 

5.       INCOME STATEMENT 

For the purpose of presentation of the Income Statement, the 

function of expenses method is adopted as it represents fairly the 

elements of corporation performance. 

 

5.1 Revenue Recognition  

The Corporation recognizes and measures revenue under five 

step approaches as per SLFRS 15- Revenue from Contracts with 

customers. Measurement of revenue is based on the 

consideration specified in a contract with a customer and 

excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The 

Corporation recognizes revenue when the performance 

obligations are satisfied. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In the comparative period, revenue is recognized on an accrual 

basis when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Corporation and the revenue and associated costs incurred or 

to be incurred can be reliably measured regardless of when the 

payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of 

the consideration received or receivable, taking into account 

contractually defined terms of payment.  

 

 

5.1.1 Nature of goods and service 

The following is a description of the principal activities from 

which the Corporation generates its revenue and the respective 

revenue recognition policies. 

 

 

i. Revenue from importing and trading 

pharmaceutical and health care items 

The Corporation recognizes revenue from following 

sources; 
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performance obligation and significant 
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The Corporation recognized revenue 

monthly at the point the customer takes 

possession of the products. The products are 

sold to the Distributors at W/S prices 

determined by the Corporation will be 

notified to the Distributor from time to time.   

The products once sold to the Distributor 

will not be taken back by the Corporation or 

exchanged for other products unless they are 

spoilt or discolored at the time of issue or 

where the wrong products were issued to the 

Distributor by an error. 

An irrevocable unconditional Bank 

Guarantee for a sum equivalent to the value 

of products intended to purchase should be 

provided in favour of the State 

Pharmaceuticals Corporation. The Bank 

Guarantee should be valid from the date of 

commencement of the agreement and it 

should be in full force during the 

continuance of this agreement. 
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The Corporation recognized revenue 

monthly at the point the customer is 

delivered with the products. The products 

are sold at prices determined by the 

Corporation which will be notified to the 

customer from time to time.   

The products once sold will not be taken 

back by the Corporation or exchanged for 

other products unless they are spoilt or 

discolored at the time of issue or where the 

wrong products were issued by an error. 

  

 

ii. Revenue from supply of Pharmaceuticals and health 

care items to the Department of Health services. 

The revenue is recognized at the point the products are 

transferred to the Department of Health Services. The 

products once sold will not be taken back by the 

Corporation or exchanged for other products unless they 

are spoilt or discolored at the time of issue or where the 

wrong products were issued by an error. 

 

iii. Production of Pharmaceuticals and health care items 

The Corporation mainly engages in manufacturing and 

marketing of pharmaceuticals items namely,  

- Jeevani 

- Glucose 

- Benzyl Bensovate Cream  

based on requirement Corporation may repack certain 

other items. 

 

The sales of manufacture goods are recognized at the point 

the products are transferred to the customers. The products 

once sold will not be taken back by the Corporation or 

exchanged for other products unless they are spoilt or 

discolored at the time of issue or where the wrong 

products were issued by an error. 

 

The following specific recognition criteria are also 

evaluated by the Corporation before revenue is 

recognized: 

 

 

 

 

 

5.1.2 Sale with a right of return 

The Corporation transfers the control of the product to 

customers with the right to return if: 

- The products sold are close to expiry 

- Products are spoilt or discolored at the time of issue 

- Issue of wrong products due to an error 

Such sale of products with a right to return shall be 

recognized by the Corporation as; 

- Revenue for the transferred products in the amount of 

consideration to which the Corporation expects to be 

entitled a refund liability; and 

- An asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) 

for its right to recover products from customers on settling 

the refund liability. 

 

 

 

At the end of each reporting period, the Corporation shall update 

its assessment of amounts for which it expects to be entitled in 

exchange for the transferred products and a corresponding 

change is made to the transaction price if necessary. 

The Corporation shall update the measurement of the refund 

liability at the end of each reporting period for changes in 

expectations about the amount of refunds. The Corporation 

recognizes corresponding adjustments as revenue (or reductions 

of revenue).  

 

An asset recognized for the Corporation‟s right to recover 

products from a customer on settling a refund liability shall 

initially be measured by reference to the former carrying amount 

of the less any expected costs to recover those products. At the 

end of each reporting period, the Corporation shall update the 

measurement of the asset arising from changes in expectations 

about products to be returned. 

 

5.2 Other Income 

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.  

 

5.3 Claims Receivable from Suppliers 

Claims receivable from suppliers for Short Supplies and 

Damages have not been recognized in the Financial Statement 

due to uncertainty of the outcome.  However, when the 

realization of income is virtually certain, the claim is recognized 

in the income statement.   

There were pending supplier claims worth Rs 6,125 Million at 

the end of the year 2024. (From 01.01.2018 to 31.12.2024)    
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5.4     Expenses 

All expenditures incurred in the running of the business have 

been charged to income in arriving at the profit for the year.  

Repairs and renewals are charged to profit and loss in the year in 

which the expenditure is incurred. 

 

5.4.1 Financial Expenses  

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 

construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 

are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All 

other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. 

The corporation‟s finance expenses comprise of overdraft 

interest, letter of credit opening expenses & credit facility 

agreement charges. 

 

 

5.4.2 Allocation between overheads 

Overheads have been allocated between SPC & DHS based on 

percentage after analyzing the activities involved. 

 

In the Financial Statements, Overheads allocation method is as 

follows. 

   DHS  SPC 

(a) Personnel emoluments 56%  44% 

(b) Travelling expenses 10%  90% 

(c) Supplies and requisites 25%  75% 

(d) Repairs and maintenance 50%  50% 

(e) Transportation, communication utilities 

 & other services  50%  50% 

(f) Research cost  65%  35% 

(g) OD interest  Actual   Actual 

 

 

 

6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- INITIAL 

RECOGNITION AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT 

6.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the 

entity becomes a party to the contractual provision of the 

instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets 

are recognized on trade- date, the date on which the Corporation 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

At initial recognition, the Corporation measures a financial asset 

or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus in the case of 

a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through 

profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or 

financial liability.  

 

6.1.1 Financial Assets 

6.1.1.1 Classification and subsequent measurement 

The Corporation classifies its financial assets in the following 

measurement categories 

- Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVPL) 

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 

(FVOCI); or 

- Amortized cost. 

 

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments 

are described below: 

 

Debt instruments 

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition 

of a financial liability from the issuer‟s perspective. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments 

depend on: 

i. The Corporation‟s business model for managing the 

asset; and 

ii. The cash flow characteristics of the asset. 

Based on these factors, the Corporation classifies its debt 

instruments into one of the following three measurement 

categories: 

 

6.1.1.1.1 Amortized cost 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows 

where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal 

and interest (SPPI), and that are not designated at FVPL, are 

measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial 

assets is included in the “Other Operating Income” using the 

effective interest rate method. The Corporation currently holds 

cash in hand and bank, staff loans, trade receivables and short 

term treasury bills under this category.  
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6.1.1.1.2 Fair value through other comprehensive income 

(FVOCI) 

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash 

flows and for selling the assets, where the assets‟ cash flows 

represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are 

not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through 

other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the 

carrying amounts are taken through OCI, except for the 

recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and 

foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument‟s amortized 

cost which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial 

asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss 

and recognized in the profit or loss statement. Interest income 

from these financial assets is included in “Other Operating 

income” using effective interest rate method. Currently the 

Corporation does not hold any financial asset under this 

category. 

 

6.1.1.1.3 Fair value through profit or loss 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI 

are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss 

on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value 

through profit or loss and is not a part of a hedging relationship 

is recognized in profit or loss presented in the profit or loss 

statement in the period which it arises, unless it arises from debt  

 

instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not 

held for trading, in which case they are presented separately in 

the profit and loss statement. . Interest income from these 

financial assets is included in “Other Operating income” using 

effective interest rate method. Currently the Corporation does 

not hold any financial asset under this category. 

 

 Business model: 

The business model reflects how the Corporation manages the 

assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether the 

Corporation‟s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash 

flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash 

flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of 

these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading 

purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of 

„other‟ business model and measured at FVPL. Factors 

considered by the Corporation in determining the business 

model for a group of assets include past experience on how cash 

flows for these assets were collected, how the asset‟s 

performance is evaluated and reported to key management 

personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how 

managers are compensated.  

 

 Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI): 

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual 

cash flow or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the 

Corporation assesses whether the financial instruments cash 

flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the 

SPPI test). In making this assessment, the Corporation considers 

whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with the basic 

lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for 

the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks 

and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending 

arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to 

risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending 

arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and 

measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

The Corporation reclassifies debt investments when and only 

when its business model for managing those assets changes. The 

re classification takes place from the start of the first reporting 

period following the change. Such changes are expected to be 

very infrequent and none occurred during the period. 

 

6.1.1.2 Impairment 

The Corporation assesses on a forward looking basis the 

expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt instrument 

assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The Corporation 

recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting 

date. The measurement of ECL reflects: 

- An unbiased and probability weighted amount that is 

determined by evaluating  range of possible outcomes 

- The time value of money; and 

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available 

without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past 

events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic 

conditions. 

 

Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) 

computed as at 31.12.2024  & Economic Factor Adjustment 

(EFA) considered  in the computation of “provision for 

impairment on trade receivables” for the Corporation as at 31st 

December 2024 have led to increase the such provision 

significantly. Natures of dues were considered in EFA to arrive 

at a reasonable provision. As updated GDP information not 

available in world Economic outlook EFA has been considered 

for the year 2022. (Latest updated) 
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Impairment of trade receivables have been calculated based on 

the advisory services provided by the „‟Moore Stephan Aiyar” 

in adoption of SLFRS 09. Accordingly, incurred loss 

on provision for impairment of trade receivables are calculated, 

based on loss rate derived from probability of default (PD)  & 

accordingly, expected credit loss (ECL) is calculated by 

adjusting economic factor Adjustment (EFA). 

Debt balances for impairment have been fully provided if the 

such balances are long outstanding & its recoveries are highly 

doubtful. EFA has not been adjusted for such provision.   

Impairment calculations have been done based on significant 

impairment & collective impairment under 4 categories given 

below. 

 

 Significant collective impairment - (Government 

sector debtors – Forces, Government Hospitals) 

 Other collective impairment- (Government Sector 

others & Private sector debtors) 

 Highly significant Customers (Debtors with long 

outstanding dues & under litigation) 

 Specific impairment on MSD debts. 

 

The probability of default (PD) is calculated considering MSD 

debt balance as a ratio of the total  MSD sales for a given year & 

use historical data (yearly balance) for this purpose. Loss rate is 

derived based on the outstanding balance. When obtaining the 

outstanding balance, term loan received (as per note 27 to the 

financial statements) has been considered as a receipt since we 

received the same in settlement of MSD outstanding.  

 

 

6.1.1.2.1 Measurement of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 

allowance 

The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial 

assets measured at amortized cost and FVOCI is an area that 

requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions 

about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g. the 

likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses). A 

number of significant judgements are also required in applying 

the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as: 

 

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk; 

- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the 

measurement of ECL; 

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward 

looking scenarios for each type of product/ market and the 

associated ECL; and  

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the 

purposes of measuring ECL. 

 

The judgements and estimates made by the Corporation for ECL 

measurement is as follows; 

- Expected credit loss is the discounted product of the 

Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) 

and Economic Factor Adjustment (EFA). PD represents 

the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial 

obligation, either over the next 12 months or over the 

remaining lifetime of the obligation. 

- LGD represents the Corporation‟s expectation of the 

extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD is computed 

on lifetime basis, where Lifetime LGD is the percentage 

of loss expected to be made if the default occurs over the 

remaining expected lifetime of the loan. 

- The Corporation forecasts the economic growth for 5 

years basing historical Economic growth data for 11 years 

and the economic factor adjustment (EFA) is arrived by 

using a weighted probability of the impact of growth on 

the Corporation. The economic growth of Sri Lanka is 

used for EFA as the main factor impacting growth of the 

Corporation due to the nature of the major customers. 

 

 

6.1.1.3 De-recognition 

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognized when the 

contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets have 

expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) 

Corporation transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership, or (ii) the Corporation neither transfers nor retains 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the 

control of assets. 

The Corporation enters into transactions where it retains the 

contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets but 

assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other 

entities and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. 

These transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers 

that result in de-recognition if the Corporation: 

- Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects 

equivalent amounts from the assets; 

- Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and 

- Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from other 

assets without material delay. 
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6.1.2 Financial Liabilities 

6.1.2.1 Classification and subsequent measurement 

In both current and prior period, financial liabilities are 

classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost, except 

for Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. 

This classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities 

held for trading and other financial liabilities designated as such 

at initial recognition.  

 

Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value 

through profit or loss are presented partially in other 

comprehensive income (the amount of change in fair value of 

the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit 

risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is 

not attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to 

market risk) and partially in profit or loss (the remaining amount 

of change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such a 

presentation would create, or enlarge an accounting mismatch in 

which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the 

credit risk of the liability are also presented in profit or loss.  

The Corporation‟s financial liabilities include trade and other 

payables, bank overdrafts. 

 

6.1.2.2 De-recognition 

A financial liability is de-recognized when they are extinguished 

(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled or expires). 

 

6.2 Measurement methods 

Amortized cost and Effective Interest Rate 

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or 

financial liability is measure at initial recognition less the 

principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization 

using the effective interest method of any difference between 

that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial 

assets, adjusted for any loss allowance. 

 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 

estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 

life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross 

carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortized cost 

before any impairment allowance) or to the amortized cost of a 

financial liability 

 

 

 

 

 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 REVENUE

  2024 2023

 Rs. Rs.

Revenue - SPC   

Bulk trading 3,149,733,107        3,688,759,178        

ORS  sales 272,719,881           247,579,960           

Osusala sales  ( Note 30) 7,490,666,686        7,398,681,385        

 Unrealized Profit adj.* (63,203,497)           (13,962,081)           

Claims Received from Suppliers 219,483,799           425,585,803           

Total 11,069,399,976      11,746,644,244      

Revenue - DHS

Import supplies  27,823,216,748      37,139,542,684      

Local supplies 20,555,221,475      23,865,788,809      

Import of vaccines  -                         715,016,213           

Additional charges 205,304,593           229,558,155           

Claims Received from Suppliers 2,434,356,406        994,125,558           

Penalties on delayed Supplies -                         4,394,168               

Total  51,018,099,222      62,948,425,588      

Total Revenue 62,087,499,199      74,695,069,832      

7.1 SALE WITH A RIGHT OF RETURN   

8 COST OF SALES / DIRECT EXPENSES - DHS  

2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Revenue 51,018,099,222          62,948,425,588          

DIRECT COST

C & F value of DHS supplies 24,723,593,354      33,110,183,701      

Custom duties & taxes 981,324,211           1,280,020,671        

Cost of local supplies 19,791,775,899      23,030,867,265      

Deductions for short supplies, quality failure, administration charges, etc. 1,085,219,921        1,857,719,786        

Total  46,581,913,386      59,278,791,422      

OTHER DIRECT COST

Clearing charges ( Bank charges, Stamp fee , Commission & LC chg. 663,874,730           790,541,145           

Landing charges 36,370,599             87,269,024             

Import licenses fee 103,633,044           143,797,308           

Total  803,878,373           1,021,607,476        

TOTAL COST 47,385,791,758      60,300,398,898      

Less: Stock in transit 353,873,620           595,390,865           

Direct expenses/ Cost of sales  47,031,918,139      59,705,008,034      

Gross profit/surplus 3,986,181,084        3,243,417,554        

For the year ended 31st December

 The Sales returns experienced by the Corporation are immaterial in comparison to sales generated. However, the 

Corporation shall monitor the probability of occurrence of sales returns and the requirement to adjust any material 

impact of such. 

For the year ended 31st December

*SPC transfers stocks to its Outlets, retaining a margin to cover direct expenses. Unrealized profit adjusts by reversing the margin in 

the closing stocks at Osusala outlets at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 COST OF SALES  -SPC  

TOTAL TOTAL

BULK OSUSALA TRADING TRADING 

For the year ended 31st December TRADING TRADING SPC-2024 SPC-2023

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Stock In trade at the beginning of the year 4,737,586,713                   2,108,922,791          6,846,509,505           2,978,829,549       

Add :

Imported drugs 1,301,561,217                   1,301,561,217           8,553,118,063       

Consumables  for the laboratory 21,754,252                        21,754,252               1,123,695             

Local purchases (SPC tenders) 769,522,046                      769,522,046              723,590,660         

C.P.U - Purchases  187,530,436                      187,530,436              846,415,265         

Local purchases (Osusalas)     ( Note 30.1) -                                 3,567,963,720          3,567,963,720           1,728,571,817       

Transfers                  ( Note 30.1) (2,511,806,951)                  2,511,806,951          -                            -                        

STOCK AVAILABLE FOR  SALES 4,506,147,713                   8,188,693,463          12,694,841,176         14,831,649,047     

Less: Stock In trade at end of the year 2,617,615,860                   2,121,622,248          4,739,238,108           7,132,727,882       

COST OF SALES & TRANSFERS 1,888,531,853                   6,067,071,215          7,955,603,067           7,698,921,165       

   

10 COST OF MANUFACTURING GLUCOSE, JEEWANEE AND BB CREAM  

For the year ended 31st December 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Opening stock of raw materials 4,615,220              1,814,570              

Add: purchases of raw materials 65,321,306               55,146,793               

Less: closing stock of raw materials 2,857,357              4,615,220              

Cost of raw materials consumed 67,079,168            52,346,143            

Add: Manufacturing cost  (Note 10.1) 87,415,958            94,465,565            

Production cost of goods 154,495,126          146,811,708          

ORS TRADING 

For the year ended 31st December 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Opening stock ( finished goods) 624,515                 466,831                 

Add: Production cost of goods 154,495,126          146,811,708          

Less: Closing stock ( finished goods) 4,478,850              624,515                 

Cost of sale 150,640,791          146,654,024          

Sales 272,719,881          247,579,960          

Less: Cost of sale 150,640,791          146,654,024          

Gross profit 122,079,090          100,925,936          
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.1 MANUFACTURING COST

For the year ended 31st December 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Salaries & wages 34,917,784              31,828,468             

Overtime. 2,970,006                1,856,718               

Uniforms. 18,700                     37,800                    

Insurance for staff 396,978                   457,199                  

Provident fund (EPF & ETF). 4,313,366                3,098,520               

Annual bonus 477,000                   480,000                  

Attendance bonus 424,950                   575,100                  

Annual incentive bonus 7,110,256                5,276,759               

Staff welfare 1,514,782                     1,047,915                   

Medical expenses 382,813                        435,622                      

Power 3,148,907                3,750,580               

Depreciation 5,698,275                10,454,106             

Repairs & maintenance 1,792,292                7,066,825               

Packing materials used 24,249,850              28,099,952             

Total 87,415,958              94,465,565             

11 OTHER OPERATING INCOME   

For the year ended 31st December 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

SPC

Sales of tender forms. 86,469,255              73,538,030             

Rent received 1,201,921                1,058,253                

Treasury bill interest 15,653,840              22,089,532             

Scrap sales 1,744,680                447,225                  

Interest income - USD accout 6,276,554                14,806,064             

Miscellaneous income 9,208,920                34,113,326              

Stock excesses 4,874,262                1,044,516                

Foreign exchange gain/loss 22,531,200              32,007,074             

Prescriber   -                           4,925                      

Training expence recoveries -                           709,297                  

Int. on returned cheques/ delays 417,405                   824,281                   

Total 148,378,036 180,642,523

DHS   

Bad debt recoveries- DHS 61,166,178              -                         

Foreign exchange gain 634,793,099            431,924,475            

Total 695,959,278            431,924,475           

Grand Total 844,337,314 612,566,998
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

For the year ended 31st December TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING 

OSUSALAS O.R.S. BULK SPC DHS 2024 2023

PERSONNEL  EMOLUMENTS   Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Salaries, Wages & Allowances. 666,743,602       -                     358,702,141       1,025,445,743    456,529,998       1,481,975,741    1,322,159,897    

Overtime. 46,269,920         -                     11,603,214         57,873,134         7,735,476           65,608,610         44,644,628         

Staff training expenses. -                     -                     6,121,185           6,121,185           7,790,600           13,911,785         676,475              

Uniforms. 4,998,023           -                     1,263,138           6,261,161           1,607,630           7,868,792           8,045,240           

Insurance for staff 6,226,757           -                     4,950,490           11,177,247         6,300,624           17,477,871         18,129,648         

Provident fund (EPF & ETF). 79,447,042         -                     45,297,028         124,744,070       57,650,763         182,394,832       125,790,544       

Annual bonus 7,196,036           -                     4,237,838           11,433,873         5,393,611           16,827,485         16,163,212         

Monthly attendance bonus. 9,361,950           -                     4,424,244           13,786,194         5,630,856           19,417,050         19,787,500         

Sports club expenses -                     -                     498,214              498,214              634,091              1,132,305           845,205              

Annual per inc. bonus. 122,679,143       -                     77,968,515         200,647,658       , 99,232,656         299,880,314       191,968,759       

Gratuity.  ( Note 26.3) -                     -                     40,374,987         40,374,987         51,386,347         91,761,334         111,720,011       

Land/ Housing  loan interest 4,171,822           ` 95,905               2,713,759           6,981,486           3,453,875           10,435,361         12,539,182         

SPC Anniversary payment -                     -                     3,270,006           3,270,006           4,161,826           7,431,831           1,775,200           

Total 947,094,295       95,905               561,424,759       1,508,614,960    707,508,352       2,216,123,312    1,874,245,502    

TRAVELING EXPENSES  

Overseas travelling expenses- others. -                     -                     243,500              243,500              27,056                270,556              32,422                

Local travelling expenses        - others. 1,795,404           11,480               2,827,086           4,633,970           314,121              4,948,091           3,722,107           

Total 1,795,404           11,480               3,070,586           4,877,470           341,176              5,218,647           3,754,529           

SUPPLIES & REQUISITES     

Printing & stationery. 12,203,468            1,535,069             14,489,965            28,228,502            4,829,988             33,058,490            28,386,767            

Board meeting expenses. -                        -                       141,611                141,611                47,204                  188,815                112,793                

Entertainment - others. -                        -                       2,056,132             2,056,132             685,377                2,741,510             947,414                

Repairs to motor vehicles. -                        -                       15,499,255            15,499,255            5,166,418             20,665,673            14,788,207            

Fuel & lubricants. -                        -                       17,891,223            17,891,223            5,963,741             23,854,964            19,194,591            

License fees of motor vehicles. -                        -                       190,381                190,381                63,460                  253,842                235,711                

Total 12,203,468            1,535,069             50,268,568            64,007,104            16,756,189            80,763,294            63,665,482            

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE   

Buildings. 6,807,800             -                       12,174,465            18,982,265            12,174,465            31,156,730            19,851,320            

Furniture, fittings & equipment 7,844,033             -                       3,561,682             11,405,715            3,561,682             14,967,397            14,979,049            

Computer 588,991                -                       7,773,898             8,362,889             7,773,898             16,136,786            11,514,295            

Total 15,240,823            -                       23,510,045            38,750,868            23,510,045            62,260,914            46,344,664            

SPC TRADING
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

For the year ended 31st December TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING 

OSUSALAS O.R.S. BULK SPC DHS 2024 2023

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION UTILITIES & OTHER SERVICES

Rent/Amortization of ROU Assets (Note 17.2) 46,405,067       -                  1,036,568        47,441,635         -                  47,441,635        36,538,265       

Rent - "Mehewarapiyasa" -                   -                  6,698,000        6,698,000           6,698,000        13,396,000        12,900,000       

Lease rent amortization 618,474            -                  160,000 778,474              -                  778,474            778,474            

Rates & taxes. 1,206,309         -                  1,898,045        3,104,354           1,898,045        5,002,399          5,002,175         

Water bills 1,720,061         184,114           1,070,801        2,974,976           1,070,801        4,045,778          3,408,815         

Electricity. 48,106,893       -                  21,211,109      69,318,002         21,211,109      90,529,110        90,273,864       

Fuel for Generator 785,627            -                  233,995           1,019,622           233,995           1,253,617          1,135,045         

Postage, Telegrams & Telephones. 3,170,478         44,820             12,787,773      16,003,071         12,787,773      28,790,843        24,001,335       

Trade subscriptions, Periodicals & Publications. 680,170            -                  194,094           874,264              194,094           1,068,357          1,226,573         

Professional charges. -                   -                  3,336,227        3,336,227           3,336,227        6,672,454          5,087,265         

Insurance. -                   -                  4,069,919        4,069,919           , 4,069,919        8,139,837          4,971,263         

Press notification. -                   -                  5,860,014        5,860,014           13,673,366      19,533,380        20,291,550       

Security services. 40,103,842       461,148           9,969,298        50,534,287         9,969,298        60,503,585        48,044,768       

Depreciation 34,094,523       -                  28,128,838      62,223,362         28,128,838      90,352,200        101,010,141     

Demolishing of Bldg. (Net book value ) 3,331,556        3,331,556           -                  3,331,556          -                    

Amortisation- Computer Software 1,465,847         -                  903,769            2,369,616           -                  2,369,616          1,771,117         

License fees for drugs. 2,347,709         293,355           22,626,273      25,267,338         -                  25,267,338        49,199,557       

Sundry expenses. 98,269              11,731             195,660           305,660              92,075             397,735            546,983            

Directors fees. -                   -                  515,190           515,190              515,190           1,030,380          640,000            

Audit fees. -                   -                  1,232,250        1,232,250           1,232,250        2,464,500          3,334,800         

Tender board expenses. -                   ` -                  4,886,539        4,886,539           11,401,925      16,288,464        14,596,420       

Staff welfare. 30,417,026       -                  14,129,333      44,546,359         17,982,787      62,529,146        53,672,103       

Staff medical expenses. 5,429,576         -                  3,225,983        8,655,559           4,105,796        12,761,355        12,960,364       

Donations -                   -                  21,730,639      21,730,639         -                  21,730,639        124,130            

Total 216,649,871     995,169           169,431,871    387,076,911       138,601,487    525,678,398      491,515,008     

TOTAL  ADMINISTRATIVE    Ex 1,192,983,862  2,637,622        807,705,830    2,003,327,314     886,717,250    2,890,044,564   2,479,525,184  

 

SPC TRADING
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

13 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES   

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

For the year ended 31st December TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING 

OSUSALAS O.R.S. BULK SPC DHS 2024 2023

SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sales promotion expenses. -                     -                     27,048,945        27,048,945        -                     27,048,945        9,808,999          

Prescriber   -                     799,794             799,794             -                     799,794             -                     

Transport charges. -                     -                     7,057,847          7,057,847          -                     7,057,847          18,550,111        

Provision for bad debts  -                     7,559,838          7,559,838          -                     7,559,838          180,335,734      

Discount on osusala sales -                     -                     22,977,657        22,977,657        -                     22,977,657        21,267,762        

Additional discounts -                     133,989,181      133,989,181      133,989,181      133,811,593      

Value Added Tax -                     13,367,131        , 13,367,131        40,101,393        53,468,524        28,361,329        

Stock losses   -                     -                     311,147             311,147             -                     311,147             1,227,912          

Pro. for outdated & damaged drugs 10,724,091        477,360             265,800,664      277,002,116      -                     277,002,116      291,745,815      

Pro. for outdated & damaged drugs - DHS -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     9,290,161          

Stamp fee -                     399,312             399,312             -                     399,312             547,025             

Setting up expenses -                     -                     16,696,671        16,696,671        -                     16,696,671        326,495             

Storage charges -                     -                     -                     19,158,147        19,158,147        10,876,847        

Sundry packing materials. 24,210,163        -                     231,617             24,441,780        -                     24,441,780        18,207,285        

TOTAL  34,934,254        477,360             496,239,804      531,651,418      59,259,540        590,910,959      724,357,067      

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT  

Drugs for testing -                     -                     9,010                  9,010                  16,733                25,743                1,716                  

Testing charges for samples DHS -                     -                     -                     -                     415,459             415,459             469,462             

Drugs for sample -                     -                     333                     333                     618                     951                     -                     

TOTAL -                     -                     9,343                  9,343                  432,809             442,152             471,178             

(c) Legal Compensation -                     -                     1,919,724          1,919,724          84,740,179        86,659,903        2,312,878          

TOTAL  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 34,934,254        477,360             498,168,870      533,580,485      144,432,529      678,013,014      727,141,123      

14 FINANCE EXPENSES

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

For the year ended 31st December TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING 

OSUSALAS O.R.S. BULK SPC DHS 2024 2023

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

O/D interest -                     -                     1,042                  1,042                  1,739,788,173   1,739,789,215   3,274,891,468   

Lease interest  charge for the year ( Note 17.2) -                     -                     15,850,879        15,850,879        -                     15,850,879        12,411,244        

Bank charges 2,747,368          2,747,368          -                     2,747,368          3,184,621          

TOTAL  FINANCE  COST -                     -                     18,599,290        18,599,290        1,739,788,173   1,758,387,463   3,290,487,333   

SPC TRADING

SPC TRADING
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 MAJOR COMPONENT OF TAX EXPENSES  

For the year ended 31st December 2024 2024 2024 2023

SPC DHS Total Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Current tax expenses     (Note 15.1) 296,954,967      558,598,969        , 855,553,937            495,926,601           

Over/Under provision in respect of previous years 52,575,412        98,899,072          151,474,484            -                         

Adj. Deferred tax Income/Expenses relating to the origination - -                       -                           -                         

 - and reversal of temporary differences ( Note 20) (54,154,763)      (101,869,973)       (156,024,736)           (1,744,737)             

Tax expenses 295,375,616       555,628,068        851,003,685            494,181,864           

  

  

15.1 RECONCILIATION OF ACCOUNTING PROFIT TO INCOME TAX EXPENSES

For the year ended 31st December 2024 2024 2024 2023

SPC DHS Total Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit Before Tax 563,208,425      1,911,202,409     2,474,410,834         1,267,716,682        

Disallowable expenses 571,555,776      94,082,779          665,638,555            777,672,002           

Qualifying payments (144,914,310)    (143,288,623)       (288,202,933)           (392,300,015)         

Taxable Income 989,849,892      1,861,996,564     2,851,846,456         1,653,088,669        

Income Tax  @ 30% 296,954,967      558,598,969        855,553,937            495,926,601           

Income tax on current year profit 296,954,967      558,598,969        855,553,937            495,926,601           

Over/Under provision in respect of previous years 52,575,412        98,899,072          151,474,484         -                         

Adj. Deferred tax Income/Expenses relating to the origination -

      and reversal of temporary differences  (Note 20) (54,154,763)      (101,869,973)       (156,024,736)           (1,744,737)             

Tax expenses 295,375,616      555,628,068        851,003,685            494,181,864           

Effective Tax Rate  %   29.84                       29.89                      
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

Freehold land Buildings Motor Vehicles
Furniture & 

Fittings
Equipment

Plant  & 

Machinery
Computers Total

COST OF DEEMED COST Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

At 1 January 2023 1,199,639,630      735,596,529       173,550,000       117,547,794       228,491,431       46,454,370         145,795,422       2,647,075,176      

Additions -                       303,452              -                      4,755,453           4,241,929           1,667,500           7,536,474           18,504,808           

At 31 December 2023 1,199,639,630      735,899,982       173,550,000       122,303,247       232,733,360       48,121,870         153,331,896       2,665,579,984      

Additions -                       731,500              -                      78,956,624         49,427,562         -                      20,393,258         149,508,943         

Adjustments* -                       (6,442,970)          -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (6,442,970)            

At 31 December 2024 1,199,639,630      730,188,511       173,550,000       201,259,871       282,160,921       48,121,870         173,725,154       2,808,645,957      

 

DEPRECIATION & IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2023 -                       159,952,255       17,355,000         57,169,285         146,371,557       38,221,092         80,437,786         499,506,975         

Depreciation charge for the year -                       18,788,261         17,355,000         11,747,040         33,264,359         4,952,116           25,357,471         111,464,247         

At 31 December 2023 -                       178,740,517       34,710,000         68,916,325         179,635,916       43,173,208         105,795,256       610,971,222         

Depreciation charge for the year -                       18,763,335         17,355,000         15,062,121         21,427,022         1,679,364           21,763,633         96,050,475           

Adjustments* (3,111,414)          -                      -                      -                      -                      (3,111,414)            

At 31 December 2024 -                       194,392,438       52,065,000         83,978,446         201,062,938       44,852,573         127,558,889       703,910,283         

NET BOOK VALUE     

At 31 December 2024 1,199,639,630      535,796,073       121,485,000       117,281,425       81,097,984         3,269,297           46,166,265         2,104,735,674      

At 31 December 2023 1,199,639,630      557,159,465       138,840,000       53,386,922         53,097,443         4,948,662           47,536,640         2,054,608,762      

At 31 December 2022 1,199,639,630      575,644,274       156,195,000       60,378,509         82,119,874         8,233,278           65,357,636         2,147,568,201      

**Fully Depreciated and not in Use -                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

The cost of fully depreciated, damaged, and unusable Property, Plant, and Equipment is Rs.67,546,454/- at the end of 2024. Tenders were called, awarded & in process of relesing items upon receipt of 

payments.

*The National Building Research Organization (NBRO) condemned the Osusala Building at Colombo 4 due to its dilapidated state. Accordingly, the Corporation demolished the building, and its book 

value was recognized as an expense in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 Right-of -use Assets

 

 

Carrying amount at the bigining of the year 49,721,211          52,875,747          

Contracts terminated during the year (2,429,033)          (97,907)               

Additions during the year 74,120,659          24,371,529          

Amortization during the year ( Note No 17.2) (32,602,791)        (27,428,158)        

Carrying amount at the end of the year 88,810,046          49,721,211          

 

17.1 Lease Liability  

Obligation to Make the Lease Payments

2024 2023  

RS. RS.  

Gross Lease Liabilities - Minimum Lease Payments 147,137,836        78,688,779          

Obligations under Lease

No later than One Year 45,349,418          31,406,430          

Later than one year but no later than five years 75,769,777          46,201,257          

Later than five years 26,018,641          1,081,091            

147,137,836        78,688,779          

Future finance charges on leases (46,099,110)        (19,163,093)        

The present value of lease liabilities 101,038,725        59,525,686          

The present value of lease liabilities is classified as:   

Current Liabilities 32,046,834          22,921,431          

Non-current Liabilities 68,991,891          36,604,255          

  

17.2 Amounts recognized in profit & loss

2024                        

Rs.

2023                        

Rs.

Amortization of "Right-of-Use" (ROU) Assets for the Year 32,602,791          27,428,158           

          14,838,845             9,110,107 

Administration Expenses ( Note 12) 47,441,635          36,538,265          

Interest paid/payable for lease liabilities (Note 14) 15,850,879          12,411,244          

Expenses not included in the measurement of lease liabilities -

short-term lease,variable lease payments,low-value assets etc.

As at 31st December 

As at 31st December 

Land and 

Building  2024                              

RS.

Land and 

Building  2023                              

RS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 Lease Assets paid in advance   

2024 2023   

RS. RS.   

Ratmalana Land 99 year 8,760,000           8,920,000           

Osusala Badulla ( Bus Stand ) 50 year 2,991,300           3,106,350           

Osusala Badulla ( CWE ) 33 year 3,310,606           3,519,697           

Osusala Nugegoda 30 year 4,669,894           4,963,227           

Total rent paid in advance 19,731,800         20,509,274           

19 Intangible Assets - Computer Software  

2024                        

Rs.

2023                        

Rs.  

Cost

As at the bigining of the year 5,171,925           6,748,551           

Acquisition/Incurred during the year 2,886,190           194,490              

As at the end of the year 8,058,115           6,943,042            

Amortisation  

Amortisation charge for the year 2,369,616           1,771,117             

Carrying Amount

As at the end of the year 5,688,499           5,171,925            

 

20 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ LIABILITIES   

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

On Property plant & equipment 145,859,567         5,689,023           151,548,590       134,649,396     11,210,171     145,859,567   

Deferred tax liability 145,859,567         5,689,023           151,548,590       134,649,396     11,210,171     145,859,567   

On Retirement benefit obligation (125,239,095)       (78,613,124)        (203,852,219)      (137,263,329)    12,024,234     (125,239,095)  

Provision for disputed items  (259,490,245)       (83,100,635)        (342,590,880)      (234,511,103)    (24,979,142)    (259,490,245)  

Deferred tax Assets (384,729,340)       (161,713,759)      (546,443,099)      (371,774,432)    (12,954,908)    (384,729,340)  

Net Deferred Tax Assets/ Liability (238,869,772)       (156,024,736)      (394,894,509)      (237,125,035)    (1,744,737)      (238,869,772)  

Deferred income tax is provided using a principal tax rate of - 30%

As at 31st December 

Lease rentals paid in advance represents operating leases stated at cost/revaluation less accumulated 

amortisation. Such carrying amounts are amortised over the remaining lease period or useful life of 

the leasehold property whichever is shorter.

Balance                                 

31st December 

2023

Balance                                 

1st January 2024
Recognised in 

profit & loss

Balance                                 

31st December 

2024

Balance                                 

1st January 

2023

Recognised in 

profit & loss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   

21 TRADING STOCK

As at 31st December Bin Balance Stock Adj.
Trading Stock in 

Hand

Prov. for 

Damaged & 

Outdated 

Stock

Prov. for 

Unrealized 

Profit

Stock                       

(as at 31st Dec)
Bin Balance Stock Adj.

Trading Stock 

in Hand

Prov. for 

Damaged & 

Outdated 

Stock

Prov. for 

Unrealized 

Profit

Stock                       

(as at 31st Dec)

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Stock in Transit 26,079,116      -              26,079,116          -                  -                26,079,116        43,925,437       -               43,925,437       -                 -                43,925,437         

Bulk Stores 2,617,615,860 2,740,648   2,620,356,508     767,549,585   1,455,239     1,851,351,685   5,031,595,970  491,278       5,032,087,249 493,653,211  879,836        4,537,554,202    

Trading Stock Osusala ( NOTE 30.4) 2,121,622,248 2,133,614   2,123,755,862     10,724,091     140,723,722 1,972,308,048   2,101,131,912  553,238       2,101,685,150 8,095,709      78,095,628  2,015,493,812    

Finished Products- ORS 4,478,850        -              4,478,850            -                  -                4,478,850          624,515            -               624,515            -                  -                624,515              

Raw Materials -ORS 2,857,357        -              2,857,357            477,360.00     -                2,379,997          4,615,220         -               4,615,220         -                  -                4,615,220           

Total  4,772,653,432 4,874,262   4,777,527,694 778,751,036 142,178,961 3,856,597,697 7,181,893,053 1,044,516    7,182,937,570 501,748,920 78,975,464 6,602,213,186

SUNDRY STOCKS  

Printing Stationery 48,933,162      -              48,933,162          -                  -                48,933,162        22,193,699       -               22,193,699       -                  -                22,193,699         

Packing Materials 74,318,303      -              74,318,303          -                  -                74,318,303        63,010,937       -               63,010,937       -                  -                63,010,937         

Miscellaneous Stocks 2,125,614        -              2,125,614            -                  -                2,125,614          22,423,649       -               22,423,649       -                  -                22,423,649         

Total  125,377,079    -              125,377,079        -                  -                125,377,079      107,628,286     -               107,628,286     -                 -                107,628,286       

Disputed items 497,265,048    497,265,048 497,265,048      210,003,105     210,003,105 210,003,105       

Total  5,395,295,559 4,874,262   5,400,169,821 778,751,036 142,178,961 4,479,239,824 7,499,524,444 1,044,516    7,500,568,960 501,748,920 78,975,464 6,919,844,576

   

   

 

2024 2023
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22 STOCKS IN TRANSIT  - DHS

As at 31st December 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Stock in Transit 353,873,620              595,390,865           

Add: Disputed Items - DHS

Disputed stock as at 31.12.24 351,834,622              2,122,819,524        

Disputed balances as at 31.12.24 14,603,745                14,603,745             

Total Transit  Value 720,311,987              2,732,814,133        

Less: Provision for unsalable  

Carrying amount at the biginning 363,218,564              376,628,393           

Provision for the period -                             9,290,161               

Amount used/Charged against the provision -                             (22,699,990)            

Carrying amount at the end of the period 363,218,564              363,218,564            

Goods in Transit   - DHS 357,093,423              2,369,595,569         

23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  

As at 31st December 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Total Dues  From  DHS (Note 23.1) 38,317,971,241         38,853,759,374      

Trade Debtors (Note 23.1) 1,069,146,516           1,175,411,631

Staff Loans (Note 23.1) 89,397,232                93,475,546             

Other Staff Advances (Note 23.1) 4,331,054                  7,606,998               

Deposits  and Advances (Note 23.1) 373,214,874 645,021,072

Other Receivables & Recoverable (Note 23.1) 236,317,388              368,691,817           

Total 40,090,378,305         41,143,966,438      

Less:  Provision for bad & doubtful debts 2,288,601,698 2,342,208,038

Trade and Other Receivables 37,801,776,607 38,801,758,400

23.1 DEBTORS ANALYSIS   

As at 31st December 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

TOTAL DUES FROM DHS

Local Purchase on  DHS Tenders 920,317                     920,317                  

DHS Turnover Tax & Custom Duty 51,927,472                51,927,472             

Purchase Clearing - DHS 158,744,103              158,744,103           

Department of Health Services * 38,106,379,349         38,642,167,482      

Total  38,317,971,241         38,853,759,374      

The Corporation made 100% provision for disputed items when they were rejected by DHS due to 

quality failure, damage, and short self-life and remained in the stores with no movement for more 

than 12 months.
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23.1 DEBTORS ANALYSIS - Cont.  

As at 31st December 2024 2023

Rs. Rs.  

TRADE  DEBTORS

Distributors 254,884,592                 380,182,684                 

Private Sector Organizations 89,861,461                   ` 90,434,301                    

Forces 514,114,504                 504,598,941                  

Franchise Osusalas 24,550,041                   33,305,177                    

Authorized retailer 883,155                        1,569,254                     

Hospitals- Government 96,117,109                   81,439,670                   

Hospitals- Private 25,656,244                   22,095,779                   

Government Dept. & Corporations 33,677,844                   31,949,923                   

Disputed Debtors - Government Sector 16,940,475                   16,947,075                   

Disputed Debtors - Private Sector 2,021,042                     2,448,776                      

Debtors under litigation 10,440,051                   10,440,051                   

Total  1,069,146,516 1,175,411,631

STAFF LOANS

Welfare fund -                               186,697                        

Staff Loan 89,397,232                   93,288,849                   

Total 89,397,232                   93,475,546                   

OTHER STAFF ADVANCES

Overseas Traveling Advance 1,345,499                     

Festival Advance 93,000                          249,770                        

Recoverble Performance Incentive 2,892,555                     7,357,228                     

Total 4,331,054                     7,606,998                     

DEPOSITS AND ADVANCES

Advance Payments to Suppliers 345,512,946                 584,369,721                 

General Advance 4,339,152                     1,583,938                     

Marginal Deposit -DHS 23,362,777                   59,067,414                   

Total 373,214,874                 645,021,072                 

OTHER RECEIVABLES & RECOVERABLE

General Treasury - Term Loan Interest 100,776,450                 35,269,296                   

Sundry Debtors 12,165,035                   12,287,503                   

 E Channeling control A/c 25,556                          25,556                          

Insurance Claim Receivables 293,517                        917,538                        

Claim receivable from supplier 109,618,845                 306,753,939                 

Agency Commission Receivable 13,437,985                   13,437,985                   

Total 236,317,388 368,691,817

TOTAL DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 40,090,378,305 41,143,966,438
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23.2 DEBTORS ANALYSIS - Cont.   

( Rs.Million)

Age Analysis -DHS

Over 5 

Years

 4 to 5 

Years 

 3 to 4 

Years 
2 to 3 Years 1 to 2 Years

 Less Than 

1 Year 
Total

DHS - Outstanding 24,743        6,335          18,310        (7,627)        (5,098)        1,443          38,106        

Deductions -Claim from Suppliers -             -             -             -             -             -             -             

Import, Local & Custom duty 211             -             -             -             -             -             211             

24,954        6,335          18,310        (7,627)        (5,098)        1,443          38,317        

 

Age Analysis -SPC

 OVER 5 

YEARS 

 1 TO 5 

YEARS 

 184 - 365  

Days 

 93 - 184  

Days 

 32 - 92 

Days 

 O - 31  

Days 

 Grand 

Total 

Trade Debtors 34               35               82               182             399             334             1,069          
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24 PREPAYMENTS   

 2024 2023

As at 31st December Rs. Rs.

Pre- Payments 56,552,507 65,791,193

Employee Security Investments 441,636 441,636

Deposits - Postal Franking Machine 561,077 691,462

Pre paid Staff Expenses 11,535,752                 16,465,051                  

Advance Payments to Port Authority 144,523 169,512  

Miscellaneous Deposits 20,851,470 11,774,281  

Container Deposits - SPC 2,194,019 3,424,792

Container Deposits - DHS 8,925,036 13,621,166

Total 101,206,021 112,379,093

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  `  

2024 2023

As at 31st December Rs. Rs.

 People's Bank A/C 90210892 1,927,734,894            263,517,780               

Commercial  Bank A/C 150701 15,005,747                 2,585,789                   

Bank of Ceylon       A/C   -1438 2,660,303,053            593,303,032               

Bank of Ceylon       A/C   -1425 947,471,057               284,367,810               

Bank of Ceylon       A/C  -70556680 2,498,510,105            3,288,713,416            

Bank of Ceylon       A/C  -84740710 25,146,866                 13,114,154                 

Standard Chartered Bank A/C 1171968 01 24,368,921                 9,778,196                   

Commercial  bank  A/C  -150401 55,007                        55,007                        

Sampath Sanhida  A/C 10218 1,888,126                   4,242,342                   

Bank of Ceylon       A/C  -0087595324 78,975,603                 162,550,999               

People's bank        A/C  -07-0204137 319,841,142               415,656,088               

National Savings Bank A/C-100640401196 42,657                        41,506                        

Bank of Ceylon - Margin Account 336,357,770               366,100,096               

Investments

Treasury Bill -  Credit Insurance Scheme 102,110,521               90,605,151                 

Treasury Bill - Supplier Convention 48,656,983                 43,495,173                 

Treasury Bill - Building Renovation Reserve 100,000,000               -                              

Petty Cash Impress - Control 1,111,195                   903,524                      

Total 9,087,579,645            5,539,030,064            

  

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION   

2024 2023

As at 31st December Rs. Rs.

Gratuity opening balance 417,463,650 457,544,430

Interest Cost   ( Note 26.3) 54,270,274 82,357,997

Current Service Cost   ( Note 26.3) 37,491,060 29,362,014

Actuarial Gain /Loss ( Note 26.3) 224,901,049               (112,091,686)               

Benefit paid/ payables during the year (54,618,637)                (39,709,106)                 

Total  679,507,396 417,463,649  

An actuarial valuation was carried out by Mr. M. Poopalanathan, AIA, of Messrs.' Actuarial and Management 

Consultants (Pvt) Ltd., a firm of professional actuaries as at 31st December 2024. 
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26.1 The principal actuarial valuation assumptions used are as follows: 

As at 31st December 2024 2023

Discount % 11% p.a. 13% p.a.  

Future salary increase   %   10% p.a. 10% p.a.  

Allowance increase    %  10% p.a. 11% p.a.

Retiring age 60 Years 60 Years

Staff Turnover Factor Age  

 18-29 12% 3%

30-34 4% 3%

35-39 3% 3%

40-49 2% 3%

>50 0% 0%

26.2 Sensitivity Analysis

As at 31 December 

Present Value of 

Defined Benefit 

Obligation

Present Value of 

Defined Benefit 

Obligation

 2024 2023

Discount Rate: Rs. Rs.

1% Increase  622,060,935       387,485,480        

1% Decrease 745,929,266       451,673,248        

Salary Escalation Rate ( Including Allowances):

1% Increase  745,757,547       452,031,091        

1% Decrease 621,245,851       386,713,671        

26.3 The amounts recognized in the Income Statement are as follows,  

2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Current service cost 37,491,060 29,362,014

Interest charges for the year 54,270,274 82,357,997

Gratuity include in the staff cost     (Note 12) 91,761,334 111,720,011

Actuarial gain/loss   - OCI 224,901,049       (112,091,686)       

Total 316,662,383       (371,675)              

27 LONG TERM LOANS

As at 31st December Bank of Ceylon   

Rs.

People's Bank           

Rs.

Total value                

Rs.

Loan amount 5,876,000,000    6,000,000,000    11,876,000,000   

Balance as at 01.01.2024 3,590,888,874    3,917,500,000    7,508,388,874     

Total Paid 979,333,344       999,600,000       1,978,933,344     

Balance as at 31.12.2024 2,611,555,530    2,917,900,000    5,529,455,530      

Balance to be paid   

Not later than one year 979,333,333       999,600,000       1,978,933,333     

Later than one year 1,632,222,197    1,918,300,000    3,550,522,197      

  

As at 31st December

A one percentage change in the assumptions would have the following effects to employee defined 

benefit plan - gratuity

The Government Treasury has arranged the above Term loans in enabling SPC to maintain its liquidity within the 

already approved overdraft facility limits and undertake  to settle the same with interest.  The Corporation repaid the 

loan as the settlements received from the Treasury. 
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28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES     

2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Accrued charges & provision 713,718,238         788,633,204        

Creditors control 2,254,290,232      2,061,808,990     

Special order advance 982,510                982,510               

Advance received from debtors - SPC 2,317,823             1,496,035            

Security deposits 646,001                628,001               

Salaries control 774,152                2,933,737            

Bank bills payable  - SPC 60,127,653           216,035,278        

Bank bills payable  - DHS 10,545,356,087    14,120,040,975    

Interest on cash security deposits 119,765                104,248               

Tender deposits 10,792,840           11,063,916          

Loans & other recoveries (staff) 24,060,940           14,980,812          

Gratuity payable 12,659,794           15,077,809          

P.A.Y.E 3,832,280             580,590               

Seva Vanitha 103,280                178,530               

Advance received from debtors - DHS 23,952,260           -                       

Welfare fund 236,701                ` -                       

Withholding tax control 279,518                -                       

Contributed Staff welfare 7,947,745             7,947,745            

Fund for Evaluation of Sinopharm Vaccine  * 3,693,550             3,693,550            

Fund for Covid 19 relief assistance** 8,027,301             8,027,301            

Cash Deposit in lieu of Bank Guarantee 16,868,624           18,481,413          

Agency commission 63,077,186           75,068,590          

Value added tax 254,848,236         39,944,683          

Total  14,008,712,717    17,387,707,916   

29           CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   

2024 2023

Rs. Rs.

Bank of Ceylon       A/C  -1435 10,012,630,170    8,691,229,735     

People's bank        A/C  -90210929 9,860,271,607      9,925,409,996     

Total 19,872,901,778    18,616,639,731   

As at 31st December

As at 31st December

 **The Government of Pakistan granted Rs. 8 million to utilize as relief assistance for Covid 19. This fund will be 

utilized for the requirements related to Covid -19 pandemic in the year 2025.   

 * Ceyoka Pvt Ltd granted 7.5 million to conduct Sinopharm post-marketing surveillance research and related 

activities. The Corporation is carrying out research and related activities. The balance remaining as at 31st December 

2024 is given above. 
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30 OSUSALA INCOME 

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

Col.07 Col .01 KANDY NUGEGODA AVISS. RATNAPURA MINU. PANADURA GALLE MATARA KURUNEGALA AMPARA HAMBANTOTA A'PURA

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sales 1,154,364,241   341,149,266   312,257,827   148,374,380   84,391,949    144,615,226   69,068,399    176,579,076   151,560,127   115,518,842   255,595,612   134,961,018   112,320,326   146,144,982 

Cost of Sales    (Note 30.1) 942,433,378      279,188,320   252,900,650   119,663,898   67,537,490    111,599,863   55,743,925    143,361,710   121,681,558   90,174,952    203,793,520   109,559,108   93,683,857    117,534,290 

Gross Profit on Sales & Trnsfers 211,930,863      61,960,946    59,357,177    28,710,482    16,854,459    33,015,363    13,324,474    33,217,367    29,878,569    25,343,890    51,802,093    25,401,910     18,636,469    28,610,692      

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ( Note 30.2)  

Personnel Expenses 113,344,896      24,531,163    34,132,047    23,162,438    16,330,607    25,479,513    10,897,352    22,682,985    24,288,609    21,422,244    31,257,137    12,942,448    13,321,384    17,852,100   

Travelling Expenses 97,096               79,331           129,987         3,790             51,613           80,050           38,067           21,060           38,385           2,250             6,250             50,309           26,573           5,100            

Supplies & Requisites 1,008,705          144,124         499,844         166,017         212,717         245,243         201,562         297,251         367,806         220,657         486,380         24,324           225,371         315,606        

Repairs & Maintenance 2,931,391          180,717         356,122         1,809,021      130,821         153,259         40,248           661,627         495,492         248,335         175,748         129,031         142,745         101,822        

Transportation, Communication, Utilities & Other 24,267,262        3,102,814      5,217,397      4,145,224      3,357,442      4,220,865      3,257,984      4,859,321      4,051,111      4,076,771      9,136,597      3,507,800      2,972,529      3,753,459     

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 30.3)  

Selling & Distribution Expenses 2,809,631          669,955         2,131,495      880,706         182,192         949,732         430,091         1,297,436      795,855         2,865,409      988,004         208,248         270,288         791,460        

TOTAL OVERHEADS 144,458,980      28,708,105    42,466,892    30,167,197    20,265,393    31,128,662    14,865,304    29,819,680    30,037,259    28,835,666    42,050,116    16,862,160    16,958,889    22,819,547   

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 67,471,883        33,252,841    16,890,285    (1,456,715)     (3,410,934)     1,886,701      (1,540,830)     3,397,686      (158,690)        (3,491,777)     9,751,976      8,539,750      1,677,580      5,791,145     

30.1  COST OF SALES  

Stock in Trade - at the bigining of the year  252,827,007      115,600,235    73,997,734     47,363,240     18,523,917     32,683,880     21,280,303     69,858,212    36,998,491     37,670,384    63,660,553    31,678,343    37,887,647    17,486,973      

Local purchases 774,785,226      210,383,334    142,666,432    88,037,952     30,840,251     63,393,279     30,499,326     84,048,206    70,092,455    56,366,641    108,615,029   17,036,533    56,837,149    41,105,090      

Transfers 188,117,866      48,144,387     107,392,376    36,272,265     35,855,344     48,943,032     27,983,999     39,684,892    41,628,707    36,545,236    91,683,185    85,667,113    32,948,538    74,415,422      

STOCKS  AVAILABLE  FOR SALE 1,215,730,099   374,127,957    324,056,543    171,673,457    85,219,512     145,020,191    79,763,628     193,591,311   148,719,653   130,582,261   263,958,767   134,381,989   127,673,333   133,007,486    

Stock in trade at year end  (Note 30.4) 273,296,721      94,939,637     71,155,893     52,009,560     17,682,022     33,420,328     24,019,703     50,229,601    27,038,095    40,407,309    60,165,248    24,822,881    33,989,476    15,473,196      

COST OF SALES & TRANSFERS 942,433,378      279,188,320   252,900,650   119,663,898   67,537,490    111,599,863   55,743,925    143,361,710   121,681,558   90,174,952    203,793,520   109,559,108   93,683,857    117,534,290    
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30 OSUSALA INCOME 

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING RATMALANA TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

MAHARAGAMA J, PURA KARAPITIYA NEGOMBO BADULLA- CWE DIYATHALAWA JAFFNA POLONNARUWA till 31st May TANGALLE RAGAMA BANDARAGAMA FORT BORELLA

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sales 174,103,534  353,714,064  115,970,850 150,694,956 124,910,781  59,476,624  75,390,694   158,495,428 10,042,121  176,347,906   163,215,673  69,730,663    80,213,384   51,200,720  

Cost of Sales    (Note 30.1) 137,508,649  284,832,969  92,568,553   120,469,180 98,202,591    47,590,955  66,131,664   130,350,696 7,900,230    148,177,492   134,362,446  56,989,429    65,152,717   41,392,137  

Gross Profit on Sales & Trnsfers 36,594,885      68,881,095      23,402,298      30,225,776     26,708,189      11,885,669    9,259,031       28,144,731   2,141,891    28,170,414     28,853,227    12,741,234    15,060,667   9,808,583    

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ( Note 30.2)

Personnel Expenses 24,449,319    49,464,510    19,129,561   18,468,263   18,579,213    10,338,413  11,584,835   17,713,657   1,930,989    19,026,176     17,526,387    11,821,993    13,187,820   10,329,906  

Travelling Expenses 2,560             4,307             13,003          3,060            44,091          1,200           125,849        43,495          5,940           30,996           54,830           7,123             28,265          1,000           

Supplies & Requisites 190,441         1,170,665      178,402        69,752          119,758        82,816         263,370        233,934        61,587         123,385         177,166         96,740           191,140        132,680       

Repairs & Maintenance 303,581         331,820         155,594        284,075        576,943        85,115         130,517        1,246,860     4,865           209,728         155,393         87,820           99,409          39,923         

Transportation, Communication, Utilities & Other 4,685,985      6,615,370      4,595,036     3,727,278     3,538,441      1,306,845    2,388,723     4,071,964     147,015       3,278,166      4,191,916      1,799,032      3,217,035     1,512,113    

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 30.3)

Selling & Distribution Expenses 533,938         1,341,112      429,988        497,240        686,863        327,027       156,568        825,518        102,809       301,065         257,785         424,370         264,196        243,408       

TOTAL OVERHEADS 30,165,824    58,927,784    24,501,584   23,049,668   23,545,310    12,141,417  14,649,862   24,135,429   2,253,205    22,969,516     22,363,477    14,237,077    16,987,864   12,259,031  

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 6,429,060      9,953,311      (1,099,286)    7,176,107     3,162,880      (255,748)      (5,390,831)    4,009,302     (111,314)      5,200,898      6,489,750      (1,495,843)     (1,927,198)    (2,450,448)   

30.1  COST OF SALES   

Stock in Trade - at the bigining of the year 58,867,605      59,764,400      37,216,844      21,372,090     31,510,348      15,390,075    40,772,316     40,910,732      6,771,650      57,529,183       40,328,334       16,209,282       21,390,925      11,102,497    

Local purchases 91,891,942      200,976,332    40,309,112      64,766,350     43,152,367      22,036,836    29,560,126     42,940,813      (1,321,148)     23,025,913       53,500,955       30,664,964       44,073,226      22,901,449    

Transfers 46,347,488      81,689,555      55,624,426      68,547,325     53,683,447      24,048,204    26,126,068     78,190,716      2,461,025      110,533,620     70,628,712       25,510,052       24,135,527      21,212,854    

STOCK  AVAILABLE  FOR SALE 197,107,035    342,430,287    133,150,382   154,685,766   128,346,162    61,475,115    96,458,510     162,042,262   7,911,527      191,088,717     164,458,001     72,384,298       89,599,678      55,216,800    

Stock In trade at year end (Note 30.4) 59,598,386      57,597,317      40,581,829      34,216,585     30,143,570      13,884,161    30,326,846     31,691,566      11,298           42,911,224       30,095,555       15,394,869       24,446,960      13,824,664    

COST OF SALES & TRANSFERS 137,508,649    284,832,969    92,568,553      120,469,180   98,202,591      47,590,955    66,131,664     130,350,696   7,900,230      148,177,492     134,362,446     56,989,429       65,152,717      41,392,137    

*The Osusala Ratmalana retail outlet was closed down in 2024, due to continuous losses recorded during the past years. The pharmaceutical stocks worth Rs. 5,653,688/- were transferred to the main stores and the Osusala outlets after considering their requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 OSUSALA INCOME 

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

EMBILIPITIYA KDY-RAILWAY GAMPAHA NAGODA BERUWALA PILIYANDALA NINTHAVUR AKKARAIPATTU MONARAGALA PERADENIYA ANAMADUWA KDU DAMBULLA MATALE

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sales 59,439,239  75,783,652  133,262,571  115,197,123 67,192,579  81,889,727  36,003,037  39,844,437  97,317,128  133,493,997 35,527,804     55,383,991     93,324,244        111,770,523       

Cost of Sales    (Note 30.1) 47,253,835  61,507,897  110,868,345  97,716,431   52,844,698  66,849,003  29,165,481  32,834,800  81,319,559  110,910,871 28,946,899     46,440,925     74,264,405        88,302,403         

Gross Profit on Sales & Trnsfers 12,185,404  14,275,755  22,394,226    17,480,691   14,347,881  15,040,724  6,837,555    7,009,637    15,997,569  22,583,126   6,580,904       8,943,066       19,059,839        23,468,119         

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ( Note 30.2)

Personnel Expenses 11,296,727  13,054,159  16,513,637    12,975,323   12,659,320  11,962,228  9,031,268    8,434,397    10,718,693  15,028,404   5,797,490       11,015,443     13,926,833        12,333,955         

Travelling Expenses 81,320         20,911         58,034           5,600            1,500          4,350          32,043         50,677         18,824         20,735          10,919            1,560              52,040               13,886                

Supplies & Requisites 102,491       155,441       62,940           209,950        188,026       75,820         182,196       180,497       247,921       90,576          30,793            170,290          354,932             276,866              

Repairs & Maintenance 65,144         86,860         161,069         289,209        24,929         271,754       26,709         20,924         83,059         49,145          83,470            28,608            174,262             72,869                

Transportation, Communication, Utilities & Other 2,823,971    2,714,767    3,515,900      2,728,273     3,284,762    4,160,387    2,273,487    2,823,918    2,711,109    3,670,200     2,498,673       1,184,643       3,203,774          3,370,181           

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 30.3)

Selling & Distribution Expenses 460,005       237,850       292,530         71,362          218,694       149,961       375,530       140,766       143,755       822,028        267,881          722,420          974,845             471,131              

TOTAL OVERHEADS 14,829,658  16,269,989  20,604,109    16,279,717   16,377,230  16,624,500  11,921,234  11,651,179  13,923,360  19,681,089   8,689,226       13,122,964     18,686,686        16,538,888         

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) (2,644,254)  (1,994,234)  1,790,117      1,200,974     (2,029,349)  (1,583,776)  (5,083,678)  (4,641,542)  2,074,209    2,902,037     (2,108,322)     (4,179,899)     373,154             6,929,231           

30.1  COST OF SALES  

Stock in Trade - at the bigining of the year 21,396,587     19,713,177     56,625,598       45,598,917      15,893,396     25,375,305     11,473,242     9,339,355       20,904,698     26,590,360      13,952,126     30,976,865     35,271,852        27,770,734         

Local purchases 21,481,262     22,314,223     48,083,896       31,715,181      28,417,916     33,221,869     7,633,457       14,423,536     35,712,856     46,422,920      21,704,977     45,855,000     26,535,322        57,268,269         

Transfers 22,663,738     36,829,841     57,704,450       52,804,361      26,355,406     27,390,237     23,747,593     21,818,090     47,256,056     60,834,763      12,351,844     6,737,436       40,174,406        44,144,751         

STOCK  AVAILABLE  FOR SALE 65,541,587     78,857,242     162,413,944     130,118,460    70,666,718     85,987,411     42,854,292     45,580,981     103,873,611   133,848,043    48,008,946     83,569,301     101,981,580      129,183,754       

Stock In trade at year end ( Note 30.4) 18,287,752     17,349,345     51,545,600       32,402,028      17,822,020     19,138,408     13,688,811     12,746,181     22,554,052     22,937,172      19,062,047     37,128,376     27,717,175        40,881,350         

COST OF SALES & TRANSFERS 47,253,835     61,507,897     110,868,345     97,716,431      52,844,698     66,849,003     29,165,481     32,834,800     81,319,559     110,910,871    28,946,899     46,440,925     74,264,405        88,302,403         
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 OSUSALA INCOME 

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

B.S.BADULLA MATHUGAMA NARAHENPITA  MADAWACHCHIYA  PITAKOTTE HORANA HOMAGAMA NITTAMBUWA MENIKHINNA PILIMATHALAWA AMBALANGODA COLOMBO 06. BADDEGAMA HIKKADUWA

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sales 47,129,420      78,445,889    17,957,971    27,676,229     108,551,123   67,411,189    93,614,124    58,305,378   27,313,014     43,702,470     39,542,046    365,896,068  16,496,413   21,050,092         

Cost of Sales    (Note 30.1) 38,887,319      62,177,948    14,607,779    26,046,351     87,854,949    53,561,474    76,811,154    46,671,585   21,476,492     33,356,437     32,304,926    304,934,583  12,784,462   17,536,004         

Gross Profit on Sales & Trnsfers 8,242,101        16,267,941    3,350,192      1,629,878       20,696,174    13,849,715    16,802,970    11,633,793   5,836,522       10,346,032     7,237,120      60,961,485    3,711,951     3,514,088          

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ( Note 30.2)

Personnel Expenses 8,534,159        9,134,800      5,091,009      6,093,766       12,564,146    9,014,211      12,181,912    8,497,696     6,035,470       7,693,546      7,161,984      24,391,660    4,735,065     6,087,744          

Travelling Expenses 40,956             18,000           71,700           45,504            2,360             800                1,580             350               14,451            13,041           16,070           105,115         18,540          2,161                 

Supplies & Requisites 31,844             165,950         1,026             170,785          64,834           95,788           147,312         97,593          194,359          103,674         106,372         416,448         103,032        111,656             

Repairs & Maintenance 26,704             126,568         16,570           112,968          109,419         60,369           20,371           127,270        58,459            146,835         258,026         1,093,422      61,357          66,858               

Transportation, Communication, Utilities & Other 1,942,458        3,166,055      1,334,865      2,844,252       4,206,211      2,663,261      4,424,588      3,485,704     2,377,237       2,880,665      2,749,499      5,888,939      1,580,221     1,975,278          

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 30.3)  

Selling & Distribution Expenses 363,423           450,616         34,811           650,067          413,175         214,214         495,252         1,004,580     188,644          214,902          235,191         560,127         167,943        162,009             

TOTAL OVERHEADS 10,939,544      13,061,988    6,549,981      9,917,342       17,360,145    12,048,644    17,271,015    13,213,193   8,868,621       11,052,664     10,527,142    32,455,710    6,666,158     8,405,705          

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) (2,697,443)      3,205,953      (3,199,789)     (8,287,464)      3,336,029      1,801,072      (468,045)        (1,579,400)    (3,032,099)      (706,632)         (3,290,022)     28,505,774    (2,954,207)    (4,891,617)         

30.1  COST OF SALES  

Stock in Trade - at the bigining of the year 19,585,270      34,267,646    4,499,220      20,458,044     40,271,523    21,040,811    24,496,945    32,410,305   8,123,692       7,209,659      -                 178,104,164  -               -                     

Local purchases 25,669,941      39,193,109    8,280,939      3,775,207       52,786,764    36,821,888    44,150,212    27,535,498   14,402,770     26,736,301    50,711,776    228,090,583  8,128,185     38,863,634         

Transfers 19,957,813      21,125,303    6,033,885      14,663,811     34,509,108    21,333,616    30,704,162    13,595,647   7,933,247       16,982,201    26,081,211    34,450,694    22,750,744   16,877,814         

STOCK  AVAILABLE  FOR SALE 65,213,024      94,586,059    18,814,044    38,897,062     127,567,394   79,196,314    99,351,319    73,541,451   30,459,710     50,928,161    76,792,988    440,645,440  30,878,929   55,741,448         

Stock In trade at year end (Note 30.4) 26,325,704      32,408,111    4,206,265      12,850,711     39,712,445    25,634,840    22,540,165    26,869,865   8,983,218       17,571,724     44,488,062    135,710,857  18,094,467   38,205,444         

COST OF SALES & TRANSFERS 38,887,319      62,177,948    14,607,779    26,046,351     87,854,949    53,561,474    76,811,154    46,671,585   21,476,492     33,356,437     32,304,926    304,934,583  12,784,462   17,536,004         

* SPC owned building at Colombo 4 has been condemned by the National Building Research Organization (NBRO) due to the dilapidated state of the building. Accordingly, the Corporation shifted Rajya Osusala outlet Colombo 4 to a rented premises at Colombo 6 

(Wellawattha) on 21st May 2024..  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

30 OSUSALA INCOME 

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA REGIONAL OSUSALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING STORES TOTAL TRADING

BIBILE ELPITIYA NUWARA ELIYA POTTUVIL KANDY ACTIVITIES

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Sales 8,495,029         7,176,247         8,821,917         4,284,229          202,959,120    7,490,666,686     

Cost of Sales    (Note 30.1) 6,296,214         5,691,361         6,859,476         3,470,971          146,029,950    6,067,071,215     

Gross Profit on Sales & Trnsfers 2,198,816         1,484,886         1,962,441         813,258             56,929,170     1,423,595,472     

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ( Note 30.2)  

Personnel Expenses 1,844,381         2,226,396         2,328,312         1,563,767          11,970,423     947,094,295        

Travelling Expenses 1,350                2,400                11,205              -                     61,843            1,795,404           

Supplies & Requisites 38,520              163,761            55,365              15,017               283,946          12,203,468          

Repairs & Maintenance 1,440                34,773              3,200                7,820                 202,363          15,240,823          

Transportation, Communication, Utilities & Other 939,769            1,429,596         1,260,831         305,512             5,229,393       216,649,871        

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 30.3) -                      

Selling & Distribution Expenses 156,454            153,183            123,969            35,004               165,928          32,800,641          

TOTAL OVERHEADS 2,981,913         4,010,109         3,782,883         1,927,121          17,913,896     1,225,784,503     

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) (783,098)           (2,525,223)        (1,820,442)        (1,113,863)         39,015,274     197,810,969        

30.1  COST OF SALES   

Stock in Trade - at the bigining of the year -                    -                    -                    -                     40,920,099     2,108,922,791     

Local purchases 7,460,712         11,048,179       12,902,631       7,428,566          -                  3,567,963,720     

Transfers 7,211,919         9,971,588         8,281,597         3,615,722          130,892,513    2,511,806,951     

STOCK  AVAILABLE  FOR SALE 14,672,630       21,019,767       21,184,228       11,044,288         171,812,613    8,188,693,463     

Stock In trade at year end (Note 30.4) 8,376,416         15,328,406       14,324,752       7,573,317          25,782,663     2,121,622,248     

COST OF SALES & TRANSFERS 6,296,214         5,691,361         6,859,476         3,470,971          146,029,950    6,067,071,215     
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.2  OSUSALA -OVERHEADS  

 OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

Col.07 Col .01 KANDY NUGEGODA AVISSAWELLA. RATNAPURA MINUWANGODA PANADURA GALLE MATARA KURUNEGALA AMPARA H, TOTA A,PURA

A. ADMINISTRATIVE Ex Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

PERSONNEL  EMOLUMENTS   

Salaries, Wages & Allowances. 78,926,730         17,474,639         24,118,197         16,255,779         11,705,476         18,501,416         7,757,448           16,437,859         18,026,045         15,872,851         22,062,665         9,153,288           9,045,527           12,368,144         

Overtime. 6,309,757           713,573               1,544,911           1,430,966           684,762               932,181               502,470               702,130               566,362               405,966               1,597,074           740,303               994,724               934,068               

Uniforms. 615,021               134,851               189,599               139,860               94,281                 125,495               49,885                 96,781                 100,601               104,971               166,754               74,976                 61,700                 104,134               

Insurance for staff 981,682               248,796               196,680               101,049               108,849               61,069                 7,500                   93,811                 141,484               200,361               120,795               23,250                 273,010               27,396                 

Provident fund   (E.P.F & E.T.F) 9,544,211           2,155,778           2,918,945           1,921,141           1,392,973           2,242,645           940,536               1,925,643           2,175,936           1,943,187           2,619,193           1,082,583           1,106,128           1,491,393           

Annual bonus 888,333               196,116               238,099                198,333                120,000                180,000                80,000                  160,000               160,000               140,000               240,000               89,669                 80,000                 120,000               

Annual per inc. bonus. 14,777,251         3,381,360            4,386,317            2,913,560            1,850,107            3,195,507            1,471,719            2,962,254           2,873,981           2,317,070           4,122,006           1,624,179           1,629,944           2,309,599           

Housing loan interest 276,812               -                       214,398               -                       190,859               -                       27,344                 76,657                 -                       205,938               -                       -                       -                       325,917               

Attendance bonus 1,025,100           226,050                324,900               , 201,750               183,300                241,200                60,450                 227,850               244,200               231,900               328,650               154,200               130,350               171,450               

Total 113,344,896       24,531,163         34,132,047         23,162,438         16,330,607         25,479,513         10,897,352         22,682,985         24,288,609         21,422,244         31,257,137         12,942,448         13,321,384         17,852,100         

TRAVELLING EXPENSES

Local travelling expenses 97,096                 79,331                 129,987               3,790                   51,613                 80,050                 38,067                 21,060                 38,385                 2,250                   6,250                   50,309                 26,573                 5,100                   

Total 97,096                 79,331                  129,987               3,790                   51,613                 80,050                 38,067                 21,060                 38,385                 2,250                   6,250                   50,309                 26,573                 5,100                    

SUPPLIES & REQUISITES

Printing & stationery. 1,008,705           144,124               499,844               166,017               212,717               245,243               201,562               297,251               367,806               220,657               486,380               24,324                 225,371               315,606               

Total 1,008,705           144,124               499,844               166,017               212,717               245,243               201,562               297,251               367,806               220,657               486,380               24,324                 225,371               315,606               

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

Buildings. 2,084,152           99,397                 120,683               1,397,331           24,708                 37,164                 27,282                 44,926                 155,657               33,852                 56,404                 51,556                 28,275                 29,918                 

Furniture, fittings & equipment 548,960               81,320                  220,939                411,690                103,513                88,795                  12,967                  600,707               338,835               211,483               98,805                 77,475                 114,320               71,904                 

Computer 298,279               -                       14,500                 -                        2,600                    27,300                  -                        15,994                 1,000                   3,000                   20,540                 -                       150                      -                       

Total 2,931,391           180,717               356,122               1,809,021           130,821               153,259               40,248                 661,627               495,492               248,335               175,748               129,031               142,745               101,822               

TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION UTILITIES & OTHER SERVICES

Rent/Amortization of ROU Assets -                       -                       95,964                 -                       410,500               116,021               435,600               1,919,759           1,140,000           1,450,149           4,076,177           288,000               577,841               777,399               

Lease rent amortization -                       -                       -                       294,333               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Rates & taxes. 351,500               173,250               94,848                 -                       14,087                 8,350                   3,000                   6,050                   19,992                 ` 60,119                 -                       3,000                   11,638                 39,081                 

Water bills 398,234               40,316                 97,944                 40,316                 34,404                 55,728                 9,026                   5,792                   43,829                 34,628                 133,274               32,665                 34,409                 25,885                 

Electricity. 7,942,573           864,000               1,197,642           1,592,850           754,129               1,651,067           738,899               724,010               799,467               782,389               1,370,856           1,098,777           816,608               824,869               

Fuel for Generator -                       -                       1,500                   12,130                 31,338                 72,968                 16,307                 18,330                 -                       19,165                 20,760                 -                       28,300                 27,576                 

Postage, Telegrams & Telephones. 219,650               48,511                 58,754                 68,114                 42,632                 48,523                 39,004                 53,696                 46,073                 36,599                 85,094                 70,023                 46,598                 82,275                 

Depreciation 5,849,417            539,567                553,656                646,162                743,494                656,171                136,887                791,194               304,210               237,442               677,091               792,361               320,686               503,979               

Amortisation- Computer Software -                       -                       -                       38,898                 38,898                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       38,898                 

Trade subscriptions, Periodicals 

   & Publications. 128,900               13,320                 37,960                 43,020                 38,090                 17,580                 24,320                 20,700                 40,850                 31,590                 -                       -                       -                       -                       

Security services. 4,973,784           574,469               1,797,089           563,158               568,436               622,988               1,413,582           570,764               569,964               573,003               1,406,052           572,040               575,290               571,203               

License fees for drugs. 41,389                 43,765                 44,188                 44,188                 47,092                 44,188                 43,642                 41,455                 39,983                 35,759                 43,765                 41,406                 42,216                 43,793                 

Sundry expenses. 6,615                   -                       -                       -                       1,560                   3,350                   -                       2,850                   3,070                   668                      4,980                   1,980                   4,030                   797                      

Staff welfare. 3,627,050           689,936               1,018,569           667,065               527,783               803,931               346,219               569,722               893,693               683,288               1,138,594           511,298               439,914               717,520               

Staff medical expenses. 728,149               115,679               219,283               134,990               105,000               120,000               51,498                 135,000               149,980               131,973               179,954               96,250                 75,000                 100,185               

Total 24,267,262         3,102,814           5,217,397           4,145,224           3,357,442           4,220,865           3,257,984           4,859,321           4,051,111           4,076,771           9,136,597           3,507,800           2,972,529           3,753,459           

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE COST 141,649,349       28,038,149         40,335,398         29,286,491         20,083,201         30,178,930         14,435,213         28,522,244         29,241,404         25,970,257         41,062,112         16,653,912         16,688,601         22,028,087         
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.2 OSUSALA -OVERHEADS   

 OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA SATHOSA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING OUTLET TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

MAHARAGAMA J,PURA KARAPITIYA NEGOMBO BADULLA-CWE DIYATHALAWA JAFFNA POLONNARUWA RATMALANA TAGALLE RAGAMA BANDARAGAMA FORT BORELLA

A. ADMINISTRATIVE COST Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

PERSONNEL  EMOLUMENTS   

Salaries, Wages & Allowances. 17,320,253         33,757,133         14,018,682         13,113,442         12,964,319         7,333,336           8,200,094           12,664,330         1,670,285           13,342,409         12,321,316         8,536,274           9,659,799           7,436,895           

Overtime. 869,050               2,893,577           804,105               1,047,168           1,024,873           529,724               499,553               697,898               20,401                 507,732               1,000,106           488,882               273,438               252,574               

Uniforms. 130,004               248,013               98,642                 89,213                 101,791               54,660                 69,436                 97,749                 2,200                   126,825               77,995                 52,470                 62,577                 64,926                 

Insurance for staff 169,285               457,439               155,548               20,905                 139,624               -                       -                       96,023                 -                       202,042               219,913               50,005                 127,193               171,275               

Provident fund   (E.P.F & E.T.F) 2,044,916           4,075,441           1,705,687           1,486,050           1,557,586           840,446               968,965               1,526,953           211,252               1,619,665           1,431,262           975,624               1,148,304           871,671               

Annual bonus 200,000               409,669               120,000               140,000               120,000               80,000                 100,000               140,000               -                       158,000               120,000               80,000                 130,000               80,000                 

Annual per inc. bonus. 3,435,011           6,718,277           2,007,053           2,364,634           2,080,298           1,362,548           1,657,538           2,315,954           -                       2,678,993           2,175,496           1,505,839           1,665,422           1,366,016           

Housing loan interest -                       388,061               32,944                 -                       416,423               -                       -                       -                       -                       206,461               -                       -                       25,236                 -                       

Attendance bonus 280,800               , 516,900               186,900               206,850               174,300               137,700               89,250                 174,750               26,850                 184,050               180,300               132,900               95,850                 86,550                 

Total 24,449,319         49,464,510         19,129,561         18,468,263         18,579,213         10,338,413         11,584,835         17,713,657         1,930,989           19,026,176         17,526,387         11,821,993         13,187,820         10,329,906         

TRAVELLING EXPENSES

Local travelling expenses 2,560                   4,307                   13,003                 3,060                   44,091                 1,200                   125,849               43,495                 5,940                   30,996                 54,830                 7,123                   28,265                 1,000                   

Total 2,560                   4,307                   13,003                 3,060                   44,091                 1,200                   125,849               43,495                 5,940                   30,996                 54,830                 7,123                    28,265                 1,000                   

SUPPLIES & REQUISITES

Printing & stationery. 190,441               1,170,665           178,402               69,752                 119,758               82,816                 263,370               233,934               61,587                 123,385               177,166               96,740                 191,140               132,680               

Total 190,441               1,170,665           178,402               69,752                 119,758               82,816                 263,370               233,934               61,587                 123,385               177,166               96,740                 191,140               132,680               

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

Buildings. 57,558                 138,375               22,386                 19,454                 43,567                 11,390                 31,367                 1,147,306           4,215                   25,021                 34,270                 35,793                 54,405                 31,501                 

Furniture, fittings & equipment 246,023               135,650               133,208               264,621               533,376               73,725                 80,200                 98,165                 650                      184,607               121,123               52,027                 44,004                 8,422                   

Computer -                       57,795                 -                       -                       -                       -                       18,950                 1,390                   -                       100                      -                       -                       1,000                   -                       

Total 303,581               331,820               155,594               284,075               576,943               85,115                 130,517               1,246,860           4,865                   209,728               155,393               87,820                 99,409                 39,923                 

TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION, UTILITIES & OTHER SERVICES

Rent. 1,915,187           1,440,000           1,336,063           1,097,575           -                       524,882               -                       -                       -                       -                       437,035               -                       1,200,000           -                       

Lease rent amortization -                       -                       -                       -                       209,091               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Rates & taxes. 4,634                   -                       13,703                 8,052                   45,743                 -                       6,400                   10,000                 -                       16,335                 -                       4,371                   -                       -                       

Water bills 31,332                 -                       28,231                 22,747                 32,752                 15,770                 -                       59,552                 -                       19,735                 54,686                 27,928                 13,942                 -                       

Electricity. 1,063,623           1,737,277           1,253,699           1,106,665           806,676               62,999                 1,015,827           1,229,493           -                       1,229,547           1,015,132           481,249               414,973               -                       

Fuel for Generator 7,260                   -                       44,160                 9,610                   81,600                 -                       -                       7,000                   -                       1,800                   1,535                   16,960                 -                       -                       

Postage, Telegrams & Telephones. 46,254                 56,259                 81,334                 65,430                 64,386                 35,193                 69,488                 81,380                 20,009                 78,367                 48,370                 43,231                 39,151                 21,381                 

Depreciation 169,556               354,360               418,352               127,494               949,461               274,607               144,261               697,099               61,185                 679,345               265,484               133,863               419,758               586,565               

Amortisation- Computer Software -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       38,898                 -                       -                       19,449                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Trade subscriptions, Periodicals 

   & Publications. 38,090                 39,210                 -                       -                       -                       16,050                 38,000                 -                       -                       10,560                 -                       14,100                 -                       -                       

Security services. 550,873               1,411,112           558,622               568,098               557,946               -                       562,238               1,410,299           -                       566,956               1,413,582           572,506               556,288               571,183               

License fees for drugs. 41,409                 39,927                 43,765                 58,801                 42,105                 42,438                 44,260                 42,670                 -                       43,765                 65,536                 45,277                 40,390                 41,447                 

Sundry expenses. -                       -                       9,018                   30                        2,855                   100                      -                       50                        -                       4,100                   -                       80                        9,797                   -                       

Staff welfare. 669,087               1,202,695           690,731               557,776               625,825               223,095               433,248               414,421               46,372                 518,945               770,555               400,389               445,700               231,540               

Staff medical expenses. 148,681               334,532               117,359               105,000               120,000               72,813                 75,000                 120,000               -                       108,711               120,000               59,077                 77,036                 59,996                 

Total 4,685,985           6,615,370           4,595,036           3,727,278           3,538,441           1,306,845           2,388,723           4,071,964           147,015               3,278,166           4,191,916           1,799,032           3,217,035           1,512,113           

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE COST 29,631,886         57,586,673         24,071,595         22,552,428         22,858,447         11,814,390         14,493,293         23,309,911         2,150,396           22,668,451         22,105,692         13,812,707         16,723,668         12,015,622         
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.2 OSUSALA -OVERHEADS 

 OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

EMBILIPITIYA KDY- RAILWAY GAMPAHA NAGODA BERUWALA PILIYANDALA NINTHAVUR AKKARAIPATTU MONARAGALA PERADENIYA ANAMADUWA KDU DAMBULLA MATALE

A. ADMINISTRATIVE COST Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

PERSONNEL  EMOLUMENTS   

Salaries, Wages & Allowances. 8,195,267           8,846,341           11,815,048         9,433,285           8,702,194           8,250,191           6,241,055           5,914,253           7,115,095           10,635,433         4,135,035      8,188,237      9,666,797      8,734,336         

Overtime. 376,588               1,042,374           939,437               305,128               888,185               758,717               569,224               651,235              698,075              695,759              456,307          177,404          750,616          626,489            

Uniforms. 55,040                 74,176                 85,075                 73,066                 71,367                 64,027                 54,328                 58,800                57,620                81,203                25,815            50,270            92,911            62,574              

Insurance for staff 55,262                 -                       13,990                 96,125                 131,503               64,470                 90,000                 53,087                13,998                144,013              -                  90,000            95,674            -                    

Provident fund   (E.P.F & E.T.F) 969,807               1,066,818           1,373,634           1,087,732           1,050,918           993,651               730,113               716,533              853,330              1,259,753           474,666          955,564          1,170,005      1,020,351         

Annual bonus 80,000                 100,000               121,667               100,000               100,000               100,000               67,000                 60,000                80,000                120,000              40,000            78,000            120,000          80,000              

Annual per inc. bonus. 1,464,863           1,692,237           1,793,705           1,702,059           1,581,353           1,581,172           1,192,998           888,990              1,233,386           1,963,543           626,217          1,326,768      1,887,281      1,668,605         

Housing loan interest -                       89,714                 215,681               22,079                 -                       -                       -                       -                      555,138              -                      -                  71,801            -                  -                    

Attendance bonus , 99,900                 142,500               155,400               155,850               133,800               150,000               86,550                 91,500                112,050              128,700              39,450            77,400            143,550          141,600            

Total 11,296,727         13,054,159         16,513,637         12,975,323         12,659,320         11,962,228         9,031,268           8,434,397           10,718,693         15,028,404         5,797,490      11,015,443    13,926,833    12,333,955       

TRAVELLING EXPENSES

Local travelling expenses 81,320                 20,911                 58,034                 5,600                   1,500                   4,350                   32,043                 50,677                18,824                20,735                10,919            1,560              52,040            13,886              

Total 81,320                 20,911                 58,034                 5,600                   1,500                   4,350                   32,043                 50,677                18,824                20,735                10,919            1,560              52,040            13,886              

SUPPLIES & REQUISITES

Printing & stationery. 102,491               155,441               62,940                 209,950               188,026               75,820                 182,196               180,497              247,921              90,576                30,793            170,290          354,932          276,866            

Total 102,491               155,441               62,940                 209,950               188,026               75,820                 182,196               180,497              247,921              90,576                30,793            170,290          354,932          276,866            

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

Buildings. 26,379                 31,396                 72,590                 17,139                 6,585                   24,788                 8,400                   20,174                34,449                9,230                  16,020            3,580              69,867            17,564              

Furniture, fittings & equipment 30,965                 55,464                 60,249                 272,070               18,344                 235,116               17,109                 250                     45,610                39,915                67,450            18,528            104,395          37,280              

Computer 7,800                   -                       28,230                 -                       -                       11,850                 1,200                   500                     3,000                  -                      -                  6,500              -                  18,025              

Total 65,144                 86,860                 161,069               289,209               24,929                 271,754               26,709                 20,924                83,059                49,145                83,470            28,608            174,262          72,869              

TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION,UTILITIES & OTHER SERVICES

Rent. 663,243               219,576               989,914               505,648               912,385               1,666,454           463,172               720,000              615,270              1,936,339           706,372          302,657          891,289          1,188,983         

Lease rent amortization -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      -                      -                      -                  -                  -                  -                    

Rates & taxes. 13,287                 -                       5,000                   -                       6,700                   -                       -                       -                      -                      14,994                3,000              -                  7,063              6,400                

Water bills 15,386                 8,663                   -                       28,271                 21,796                 36,418                 24,409                 -                      15,027                -                      14,957            -                  37,577            24,771              

Electricity. 622,837               484,791               708,919               746,907               607,665               772,580               442,670               482,838              501,005              357,155              300,576          180,000          720,438          401,751            

Fuel for Generator 30,945                 1,000                   14,560                 15,745                 16,979                 17,600                 8,375                   43,090                24,241                -                      13,920            -                  44,470            900                   

Postage, Telegrams & Telephones. 42,287                 190,190               55,997                 56,558                 33,227                 40,204                 48,560                 54,820                77,245                37,792                70,615            20,443            50,940            42,274              

Depreciation 286,595               679,580               466,330               305,623               507,865               400,563               295,463               525,934              358,095              673,240              419,141          257,509          374,846          580,230            

Amortisation- Computer Software -                       38,898                 38,898                 38,898                 38,898                 38,898                 38,898                 38,898                38,898                38,898                38,898            38,898            38,898            38,898              

Trade subscriptions, Periodicals 

   & Publications. -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                      -                      33,290                31,340            -                  -                  36,790              

Security services. 533,142               498,661               544,822               574,469               574,469               568,436               570,374               556,171              540,445              -                      559,931          -                  476,941          567,583            

License fees for drugs. 23,360                 41,086                 41,711                 39,571                 40,691                 71,805                 42,979                 43,211                40,485                43,214                42,911            40,536            46,021            40,691              

Sundry expenses. 100                      2,230                   1,640                   1,250                   300                      -                       -                       -                      -                      2,930                  -                  2,120              865                 2,370                

Staff welfare. 518,002               477,309               560,069               340,334               463,788               458,993               278,586               300,133              425,398              472,348              270,147          282,611          409,425          393,540            

Staff medical expenses. 74,787                 72,784                 88,039                 75,000                 60,000                 88,436                 60,000                 58,823                75,000                60,000                26,866            59,869            105,000          45,000              

Total 2,823,971           2,714,767           3,515,900           2,728,273           3,284,762           4,160,387           2,273,487           2,823,918           2,711,109           3,670,200           2,498,673      1,184,643      3,203,774      3,370,181         

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE COST 14,369,653         16,032,139         20,311,579         16,208,355         16,158,536         16,474,539         11,545,704         11,510,413         13,779,605         18,859,060         8,421,345      12,400,544    17,711,840    16,067,757       
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.2  OSUSALA -OVERHEADS 

 OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

B.S.BADULLA MATHUGAMA NARAHENPITA  MADAWACHCHIYA  PITAKOTTE HORANA HOMAGAMA NITTAMBUWA MENIKHINNA PILIMATHALAWA AMBALANGODA COLOMBO 06. BADDEGAMA HIKKADUWA

A. ADMINISTRATIVE COST Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

PERSONNEL  EMOLUMENTS        

Salaries, Wages & Allowances. 6,485,011         6,621,768         3,376,442         4,331,698         8,448,475         6,189,700         8,695,712        5,725,808            4,276,840         5,154,401         4,797,879         16,707,535     2,994,589            3,966,933         

Overtime. 304,615            277,208            492,898            454,761            824,905            485,041            653,209           766,753               301,854            699,728            488,407            1,220,350        258,444               99,427              

Uniforms. 32,623              43,702              23,535              28,215              64,126              61,259              65,427             42,644                 23,475              35,204              33,853              145,427           31,702                 36,182              

Insurance for staff 79,162              20,000              39,083              44,817              195,293            3,000                92,899             56,054                 5,300                16,174              -                    279,702           12,951                 2,200                

Provident fund   (E.P.F & E.T.F) 762,179            738,477            390,565            494,645            989,807            744,274            1,059,966        682,100               477,088            631,798            565,786            1,961,774        338,866               433,010            

Annual bonus 40,000              60,000              40,000              40,000              100,000            68,843              80,000             60,000                 40,000              60,000               60,000              183,636           60,000                 80,000              

Annual per inc. bonus. 767,718            1,070,973         661,737            633,480            1,586,411         1,261,937         1,420,100        1,032,523            670,029            1,001,291          1,159,809         3,540,684        1,000,262            1,426,342         

Housing loan interest -                    227,821            -                    -                    215,330            94,859              -                   31,614                 181,634            -                     -                    79,101             -                       -                    

Attendance bonus 62,850              74,850              66,750              66,150              139,800            105,300            114,600           100,200               59,250              94,950               56,250              273,450           38,250                 43,650              

Total 8,534,159         9,134,800         5,091,009         6,093,766         12,564,146       9,014,211         12,181,912     8,497,696            6,035,470         7,693,546         7,161,984         24,391,660     4,735,065            6,087,744         

TRAVELLING EXPENSES

Local travelling expenses 40,956              18,000              71,700              45,504              2,360                800                   1,580               350                      14,451              13,041              16,070              105,115           18,540                 2,161                

Total 40,956              18,000              71,700              45,504              2,360                800                   1,580               350                      14,451              13,041              16,070              105,115           18,540                 2,161                

SUPPLIES & REQUISITES  

Printing & stationery. 31,844              165,950            1,026                170,785            64,834              95,788              147,312           97,593                 194,359            103,674            106,372            416,448           103,032               111,656            

Total 31,844              165,950            1,026                170,785            64,834              95,788              147,312           97,593                 194,359            103,674            106,372            416,448           103,032               111,656            

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE  

Buildings. 5,619                15,520              2,000                57,998              35,045              19,345              6,074               12,765                 26,579              28,180              216,281            48,240             22,747                 26,885              

Furniture, fittings & equipment 21,085              111,048            10,620              54,970              38,065              40,074              14,297             114,505               31,880              111,575            40,745              1,045,181        38,610                 39,973              

Computer -                    -                    3,950                -                    36,309              950                   -                   -                       -                    7,080                1,000                -                   -                       -                    

Total 26,704              126,568            16,570              112,968            109,419            60,369              20,371             127,270               58,459              146,835            258,026            1,093,422        61,357                 66,858              

TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION,UTILITIES & OTHER SERVICES 

Rent. -                    923,955            446,563            614,099            1,509,009         503,921            1,439,264        1,045,678            396,939            873,267            902,781            2,253,402        357,468               714,937            

Lease rent amortization 115,050            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                       -                    -                    -                    -                   -                       -                    

Rates & taxes. 6,400                4,300                -                    -                    -                    7,926                3,000               3,000                   -                    -                    3,000                225,086           -                       -                    

Water bills 18,783              -                    -                    2,043                19,409              10,770              21,840             31,989                 -                    -                    5,754                25,488             -                       7,600                

Electricity. 264,550            654,478            266,425            645,931            915,477            436,132            1,057,544        655,353               265,354            263,353            421,311            1,066,966        184,554               231,133            

Fuel for Generator 41,420              12,070              -                    21,560              5,570                3,475                8,660               11,865                 -                    2,000                10,298              -                   930                      3,200                

Postage, Telegrams & Telephones. 54,909              32,687              28,409              51,192              42,705              48,710              19,350             33,550                 36,113              31,454              40,030              77,183             55,623                 17,840              

Depreciation 463,165            481,556            301,764            547,823            626,754            592,492            775,964           704,080               829,958            782,599            583,727            632,947           452,890               514,023            

Amortisation- Computer Software 38,898              38,898              38,898              38,898              38,898              38,898              38,898             38,898                 45,900              45,900              45,900              -                   45,900                 45,900              

Trade subscriptions, Periodicals 

   & Publications. -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   -                       -                    -                    -                    -                   -                       -                    

Security services. 569,594            567,591            -                    571,130            546,346            572,844            549,030           528,227               570,862            554,606            364,024            713,936           341,226               307,603            

License fees for drugs. 40,565              40,071              40,071              46,329              40,071              40,665              46,126             42,059                 43,946              43,946              13,594              43,168             14,327                 13,388              

Sundry expenses. -                    4,330                -                    -                    4,490                3,485                2,450               -                       1,685                1,060                4,165                2,000               2,253                   581                   

Staff welfare. 314,223            361,119            167,735            290,246            400,123            357,355            421,869           333,369               156,480            252,481            339,916            717,012           125,051               119,074            

Staff medical expenses. 14,900              45,000              45,000              15,000              57,359              46,589              40,591             57,637                 30,000              30,000              15,000              131,750           -                       -                    

Total 1,942,458         3,166,055         1,334,865         2,844,252         4,206,211         2,663,261         4,424,588        3,485,704            2,377,237         2,880,665         2,749,499         5,888,939        1,580,221            1,975,278         

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE COST 10,576,121       12,611,372       6,515,170         9,267,275         16,946,970       11,834,430       16,775,762     12,208,613          8,679,977         10,837,762       10,291,951       31,895,584     6,498,215            8,243,696         
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.2 OSUSALA -OVERHEADS  

 OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA REGIONAL OSUSALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING STORES TOTAL TRADING

BIBILE ELPITIYA NUWARA ELIYA POTTUVIL KANDY ACTIVITIES

A. ADMINISTRATIVE COST Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

PERSONNEL  EMOLUMENTS   

Salaries, Wages & Allowances. 963,149            1,409,111      1,266,275        1,000,569      8,414,509           666,743,602          

Overtime. 91,727              207,221         192,578           112,414         434,513               46,269,920             

Uniforms. 12,307              600               800                 600               74,664                 4,998,023               

Insurance for staff -                    -                -                  -                137,016               6,226,757               

Provident fund   (E.P.F & E.T.F) 101,495            175,650         139,889           119,742         992,940               79,447,042             

Annual bonus 29,669              20,000           40,000            20,000           99,000                 7,196,036               

Annual per inc. bonus. 628,033            409,315         680,820           302,192         1,674,382           122,679,143          

Housing loan interest -                    -                -                  -                -                       4,171,822               

Attendance bonus 18,000              4,500             7,950              8,250             143,400               9,361,950               

Total 1,844,381         2,226,396         2,328,312           1,563,767         11,970,423         947,094,295          

TRAVELLING EXPENSES  

Local travelling expenses 1,350                2,400                11,205                -                    61,843                 1,795,404               

Total 1,350                2,400                11,205                -                    61,843                 1,795,404               

SUPPLIES & REQUISITES  

Printing & stationery. 38,520              163,761            55,365                15,017              283,946               12,203,468             

Total 38,520              163,761            55,365                15,017              283,946               12,203,468             

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE  

Buildings. 500                   16,240              3,200                  7,160                51,351                 6,807,800               

Furniture, fittings & equipment 940                   18,533              -                      660                   151,012               7,844,033               

Computer -                    -                    -                      -                    -                       588,991                  

Total 1,440                34,773              3,200                  7,820                202,363               15,240,823             

TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION,UTILITIES & OTHER SERVICES  

Rent. 333,637            778,927            688,319              -                    1,603,446           46,405,067             

Lease rent amortization -                    -                    -                      -                    -                       618,474                  

Rates & taxes. -                    -                    -                      -                    3,000                   1,206,309               

Water bills -                    -                    -                      -                    55,987                 1,720,061               

Electricity. 58,071              85,385              8,346                  -                    721,103               48,106,893             

Fuel for Generator 1,236                -                    6,220                  -                    7,000                   785,627                  

Postage, Telegrams & Telephones. 11,516              8,076                9,848                  1,280                53,074                 3,170,478               

Depreciation 258,930            259,946            227,723              115,730            777,732               34,094,523             

Amortisation- Computer Software 45,900              45,900              45,900                -                    106,748               1,465,847               

Trade subscriptions, Periodicals -                          

   & Publications. -                    -                    -                      -                    26,410                 680,170                  

Security services. 203,876            200,291            196,265              115,842            1,413,582           40,103,842             

License fees for drugs. 7,164                7,164                7,164                  7,164                23,835                 2,347,709               

Sundry expenses. -                    -                    -                      -                    2,035                   98,269                    

Staff welfare. 19,440              43,908              71,046                65,497              345,440               30,417,026             

Staff medical expenses. -                    -                    -                      -                    90,000                 5,429,576               

Total 939,769            1,429,596         1,260,831           305,512            5,229,393           216,649,871          

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE COST 2,825,459         3,856,926         3,658,913           1,892,117         17,747,968         1,192,983,862       
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30.3  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

Col.07 Col.04 Col .01 KANDY NUGEGODA AVISS. RATNAPURA MINU. PANADURA GALLE MATARA KURUNEGALA AMPARA HAMBANTOTA A'PURA

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Stock adj. (Excess/  Shortage)- Note 30.4 (500,642)        (27,408)          (10,197)          144,640         (41,396)          (94,619)          (2,791)            (68,746)          (50,570)          (821,354)        5,629             (23,265)          (66,619)          (2,071)            

Outdated  & damages              Note 30.4 577,583         262,391         803,345         155,796         104,213         289,219         110,350         356,863         314,841         2,860,030      371,390         1,526             115,269         -                 

Sundry packing materials. 2,732,690      434,973         1,338,347      580,271         119,374         755,133         322,532         1,009,319      531,584         826,733         610,985         229,987         221,638         793,531         

Total 2,809,631      669,955         2,131,495      880,706         182,192         949,732         430,091         1,297,436      795,855         2,865,409      988,004         208,248         270,288         791,460         

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA SATHOSA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING OUTLETS TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

MAHARAGAMA J, PURA KARAPITIYA NEGOMBO BADULLA- CWE DIYATHALAWA JAFFNA POLONNARUWA RATMALANA TANGALLE RAGAMA BANDARAGAMA FORT BORELLA

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Stock adj. (Excess/  Shortage) Note 30.4 (73,242)          (38,922)          (1,676)            (53,949)          46,975           (12,622)          (4,835)            1,667             -                 (16,475)          (30,185)          (14,513)          (18,138)          (7,179)            

Outdated  & damages              Note 30.4 4,919             25,258           102,844         -                 172,977         41,299           -                 22,766           11,298           55,573           3,118             2,104             -                 31,166           

Sundry packing materials. 602,261         1,354,776      328,820         551,189         466,912         298,350         161,403         801,084         91,512           261,967         284,852         436,778         282,334         219,421         

Total 533,938         1,341,112      429,988         497,240         686,863         327,027         156,568         825,518         102,809         301,065         257,785         424,370         264,196         243,408         

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

EMBILIPITIYA KDY-RAILWAY GAMPAHA NAGODA BERUWALA PILIYANDALA NINTHAVUR AKKARAIPATTU MONARAGALA PERADENIYA ANAMADUWA KDU DAMBULLA MATALE

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Stock adj. (Excess/  Shortage) Note 30.4 (8,406)            1,084             (22,124)          (22,788)          (9,701)            5,813             9,369             (1,469)            (43,541)          (4,593)            8,621             (99,899)          (1,458)            (28,623)          

Outdated  & damages              Note 30.4 50,905           81,244           19,284           28,389           26,467           134,430         361,576         41,031           -                 -                 174,342         454,406         225,573         206,762         

Sundry packing materials. 417,506         155,522         295,370         65,761           201,928         9,718             4,585             101,204         187,296         826,621         84,918           367,913         750,730         292,992         

Total 460,005         237,850         292,530         71,362           218,694         149,961         375,530         140,766         143,755         822,028         267,881         722,420         974,845         471,131         
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30.3 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING

B.S.BADULLA MATHUGAMA NARAHENPITA  MADAWACHCHIYA  PITAKOTTE HORANA HOMAGAMA NITTAMBUWA MENIKHINNA PILIMATHALAWA AMBALANGODA COLOMBO 06. BADDEGAMA

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Stock adj. (Excess/  Shortage) Note 30.4 (66,800)          43,763           (1,777)            (2,971)            (7,224)            (38,417)          41,732           11,201           (24,690)          368                 (27,235)          (18,230)          (32,001)          

Outdated  & damages              Note 30.4 290,829         115,098         25,860           493,874         39,565           38,213           73,276           641,013         15,978           -                 3,690              189,981         -                 

Sundry packing materials. 139,394         291,755         10,728           159,164         380,833         214,417         380,244         352,365         197,356         214,535         258,736         388,376         199,944         

Total 363,423         450,616         34,811           650,067         413,175         214,214         495,252         1,004,580      188,644         214,902         235,191         560,127         167,943         

OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA OSU SALA REGIONAL OSUSALA  

For the year ended 31st December 2024 TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING TRADING STORES TOTAL TRADING

HIKKADUWA BIBILE ELPITIYA NUWARA ELIYA POTTUVIL KANDY ACTIVITIES

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Stock adj. (Excess/  Shortage) Note 30.4 (29,652)          1,004              (6,379)            23,985           -                 (72)                 (2,133,614)     

Outdated  & damages              Note 30.4 27,594           5,667              435                 690                 -                 161,779         10,724,091    

Sundry packing materials. 164,066         149,784         159,127         99,294           35,004           4,221              24,210,163    

Total 162,009         156,454         153,183         123,969         35,004           165,928         32,800,641    

  * Excess 2,133,614      

 Balance with out excess 34,934,254    
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30.4 OSUSALA TRADING STOCK

As at 31st December Bin Balance Stock Adj.
Trading Stock 

in Hand

Prov. for 

Damaged & 

Outdated 

Stock

Prov. for 

Unrealized 

Profit

Stock                       Bin Balance Stock Adj.
Trading Stock 

in Hand

Prov. for 

Damaged & 

Outdated 

Stock

Prov. for 

Unrealized 

Profit

Stock                       

Location Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Colombo 07 273,296,721   500,642          273,797,363   577,583          8,721,809       264,497,971   253,080,852   215,381          253,296,233   469,226          5,722,506       247,104,502   

Colombo 04 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                 179,636,727   38,048            179,674,774   1,570,611       5,074,269       173,029,894   

Colombo 01 94,939,637     27,408            94,967,045      262,391          4,147,115       90,557,540     116,917,008   10,494            116,927,502    1,327,266       3,194,037       112,406,199   

Kandy 71,155,893     10,197            71,166,089      803,345          5,658,072       64,704,673     74,698,685     (10,598)          74,688,086      690,352          2,917,516       71,080,218     

Nugegoda 52,009,560     (144,640)        51,864,920      155,796          2,264,359       49,444,766     47,531,438     (10,384)          47,521,054      157,814          1,220,567       46,142,672     

Avissawella 17,682,022     41,396            17,723,418     104,213          1,572,435       16,046,769     18,559,589     (1,280)            18,558,309     34,392            779,108          17,744,809     

Rathnapura 33,420,328     94,619            33,514,947     289,219          2,597,279       30,628,449     32,843,298     138,455          32,981,753     297,873          1,370,555       31,313,325     

Minuwangoda 24,019,703     2,791              24,022,494     110,350          2,074,428       21,837,716     21,313,328     18,545            21,331,872     51,569            984,023          20,296,280     

Panadura 50,229,601     68,746            50,298,347     356,863          4,188,802       45,752,682     70,085,380     (7,559)            70,077,821     219,609          3,035,896       66,822,317     

Galle 27,038,095     50,570            27,088,665     314,841          , 1,799,395       24,974,428     37,228,993     42,864            37,271,856     273,366          , 1,375,469       35,623,022     

Matara 40,407,309     821,354          41,228,662     2,860,030       2,604,082       35,764,550     37,756,090     (26,585)          37,729,506     59,122            1,572,503       36,097,880     

Kurunegala 60,165,248     (5,629)            60,159,619     371,390          4,347,825       55,440,404     63,702,296     3,548              63,705,843     45,290            2,449,018       61,211,535     

Ampara 24,822,881     23,265            24,846,146     1,526              3,168,013       21,676,607     31,665,783     12,559            31,678,343     -                  1,693,148       29,985,194     

Hambantota 33,989,476     66,619            34,056,096      115,269          1,997,274       31,943,553     38,081,632     3,286              38,084,918      197,271          1,378,077       36,509,570     

Anuradhapura 15,473,196     2,071              15,475,267     -                  1,579,117       13,896,150     17,483,751     3,222              17,486,973     -                  899,183          16,587,790     

Maharagama 59,598,386     73,242            59,671,628     4,919              3,509,733       56,156,976     58,867,112     26,488            58,893,599     25,995            2,362,331       56,505,274     

Jayawardanapura 57,597,317     38,922            57,636,240     25,258            3,027,056       54,583,926     59,768,186     8,406              59,776,593     12,193            1,884,317       57,880,083     

Karapitiya 40,581,829     1,676              40,583,505     102,844          3,698,976       36,781,685     37,223,851     8,699              37,232,550     15,706            1,640,565       35,576,279     

Negombo 34,216,585     53,949            34,270,534     -                  2,852,020       31,418,515     21,338,335     42,923            21,381,258     9,168              924,245          20,447,845     

Badulla - CWE 30,143,570     (46,975)          30,096,596     172,977          2,523,466       27,400,153     31,543,154     7,524              31,550,678     40,329            1,360,897       30,149,451     

Diyathalawa 13,884,161     12,622            13,896,782     41,299            1,221,805       12,633,678     15,499,844     (25,610)          15,474,235     84,160            799,200          14,590,875     

Jaffna 30,326,846     4,835              30,331,681     -                  3,235,230       27,096,451     40,768,061     4,255              40,772,316     -                  2,197,677       38,574,639     

Polonnaruwa 31,691,566     (1,667)            31,689,899     22,766            3,262,123       28,405,009     40,914,209     (966)               40,913,243     2,510              1,984,268       38,926,465     

Ratmalana 11,298            -                  11,298            11,298            -                  -                 6,753,758       26,078            6,779,836       8,186              283,569          6,488,081       

Tangalle 42,911,224     16,475            42,927,699 55,573            5,604,117 37,268,009     57,546,109     11,144            57,557,253 28,071            3,214,710 54,314,473     

Ragama 30,095,555     30,185            30,125,740  3,118              2,792,629 27,329,993     40,307,639     20,694            40,328,334  -                  1,929,992 38,398,342     

2024 2023
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30.4 OSUSALA TRADING STOCK  - Cont.

As at 31st December Bin Balance Stock Adj.
Trading Stock in 

Hand

Prov. for 

Damaged & 

Outdated 

Stock

Prov. for 

Unrealized 

Profit

Stock                       Bin Balance Stock Adj.
Trading Stock 

in Hand

Prov. for 

Damaged & 

Outdated 

Stock

Prov. for 

Unrealized 

Profit

Stock                       

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Bandaragama 15,394,869        14,513            15,409,382              2,104              1,713,325       13,693,953       16,203,188       9,286              16,212,474        3,192              770,823          15,438,459         

Fort - Station 24,446,960        18,138            24,465,098              -                  1,096,331       23,368,767       21,383,463       7,462              21,390,925        -                  801,734          20,589,191         

Borella 13,824,664        7,179              13,831,842             31,166            805,384          12,995,293       11,110,672       498                 11,111,170       8,673              411,382          10,691,115         

Embilipitiya 18,287,752        8,406              18,296,158             50,905            1,781,593       16,463,660       21,423,905       5,106              21,429,011       32,424            981,051          20,415,535         

KDY-Railway 17,349,345        (1,084)            17,348,261             81,244            1,369,803       15,897,214       19,763,503       3,895              19,767,398       54,221            936,674          18,776,503         

Gampaha 51,545,600        22,124            51,567,723             19,284            4,594,022       46,954,418       56,692,491       (13,835)          56,678,656       53,058            2,858,299       53,767,299         

Nagoda 32,402,028        22,788            32,424,816             28,389            3,590,731       28,805,696       45,569,842       32,813            45,602,654       3,737              2,022,063       43,576,854         

Beruwala 17,822,020        9,701              17,831,721             26,467            1,202,274       16,602,980       15,928,130       3,548              15,931,679       38,283            790,102          15,103,294         

Piliyandala 19,138,408        (5,813)            19,132,595             134,430          1,333,364       17,664,800       25,420,123       (1,939)            25,418,183       42,879            1,065,762       24,309,543         

Ninthavur 13,688,811        (9,369)            13,679,442             361,576          1,391,232       11,926,634       11,609,680       (31,104)          11,578,577       105,335          532,009          10,941,233         

Akkaraipattu 12,746,181        1,469              12,747,650             41,031            1,085,689       11,620,930       9,402,437         (15,204)          9,387,233         47,878            402,844          8,936,511           

Monaragala 22,554,052        43,541            22,597,594             -                  1,940,282       20,657,312       20,893,380       25,917            20,919,297       14,599            1,164,997       19,739,702         

Peradeniya 22,937,172        4,593              22,941,765             -                  983,913          21,957,852       26,595,186       (276)               26,594,910       4,550              1,054,672       25,535,689         

Anamaduwa 19,062,047        (8,621)            19,053,425             174,342          1,315,777       17,563,307       14,045,652       (2,224)            14,043,428       91,302            641,972          13,310,153         

Kotalawala defence Academy 37,128,376        99,899            37,228,275             454,406          1,257,653       35,516,217       31,169,898       (38,247)          31,131,651       154,786          860,574          30,116,291         

Dambulla 27,717,175        1,458              27,718,633             225,573          3,098,491       24,394,568       35,325,384       4,411              35,329,795       57,943            1,724,473       33,547,379         

Matale 40,881,350        28,623            40,909,973             206,762          2,338,531       38,364,680       27,924,263       10,551            27,934,815       164,081          1,324,681       26,446,053         

Badulla Bus stand 26,325,704        66,800            26,392,504             290,829          2,248,125       23,853,550       19,650,740       (11,346)          19,639,394       54,123            906,106          18,679,164         

Mathugama 32,408,111        (43,763)          32,364,348             115,098          2,282,149       29,967,101       34,337,275       (29,245)          34,308,030       40,383            1,160,832       33,106,814         

Narahenpita 4,206,265          1,777              4,208,041               25,860            310,490          3,871,691         4,602,120         700                 4,602,820         103,600          179,632          4,319,588           

Medawachchiya 12,850,711        2,971              12,853,682             493,874          1,498,204       10,861,603       21,523,805       467                 21,524,272       1,066,228       1,037,377       19,420,667         

Pitakotte 39,712,445        7,224              39,719,669             39,565            2,169,419       37,510,685       40,303,133       (2,937)            40,300,197       28,673            1,225,734       39,045,789         

Horana 25,634,840        38,417            25,673,257             38,213            1,882,340       23,752,704       21,038,876       8,211              21,047,087       6,277              863,396          20,177,414         

Homagama 22,540,165        (41,732)          22,498,433             73,276            1,873,244       20,551,914       24,527,756       1,262              24,529,018       32,073            1,067,275       23,429,670         

Nittambuwa 26,869,865        (11,201)          26,858,664             641,013          1,673,109       24,544,542       32,459,847       25,834            32,485,682       75,376            1,063,516       31,346,789         

2024 2023

 46



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

30 OSUSALA TRADING STOCK  - Cont.

As at 31st December Bin Balance Stock Adj.
Trading Stock in 

Hand

Prov. for 

Damaged & 

Outdated Stock

Prov. for 

Unrealized 

Profit

Stock                       Bin Balance Stock Adj.
Trading Stock 

in Hand

Prov. for 

Damaged & 

Outdated 

Stock

Prov. for 

Unrealized 

Profit

Stock                       

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Menikhinna 8,983,218           24,690            9,007,908                15,978               998,161          7,993,769          -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Pilimathalawa 17,571,724         (368)               17,571,356              -                    1,045,986       16,525,370        -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Ambalangoda 44,488,062         27,235            44,515,297              3,690                 2,094,484       42,417,123        -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Colombo 06. 135,710,857       18,230            135,729,087            189,981             4,596,256       130,942,850      -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Baddegama 18,094,467         32,001            18,126,468              -                    1,260,628       16,865,840        -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Hikkaduwa 38,205,444         29,652            38,235,096              27,594               3,400,626       34,806,876        -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Bibile 8,376,416           (1,004)            8,375,413                5,667                 710,222          7,659,524          -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Elpitiya 15,328,406         6,379              15,334,785              435                    1,387,805       13,946,546        -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Nuwara Eliya 14,324,752         (23,985)          14,300,767              690                    1,142,433       13,157,644        -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Pottuvil 7,573,317           -                  7,573,317                -                    804,488          6,768,829          -                    -                  -                    -                  -                  -                      

Regional Stores Kandy 25,782,663         72                   25,782,735              161,779             -                  25,620,956        41,112,056        -                  41,112,056        191,957          -                  40,920,099         

Total 2,121,622,248    2,133,614       2,123,755,862         10,724,091        , 140,723,722   1,972,308,048   2,101,131,912   553,238          2,101,685,150   8,095,709       , 78,095,628     2,015,493,812    
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47



48 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31. CAPITAL 

There is no change in the Authorized Capital during the year ended 31st December 2024 

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

Contributed Capital is made up by government grants amounting to Rs 59,055,258 as at 31 Dec 2024. 

32. GENERAL RESERVE 

 General Reserve              2024                     2023    

 Balance as at 31st December       Rs.  66,061,447/-      Rs.  66,061,447/- 

General Reserve of the Corporation has been created out of the profits prior to year 1992, so as to meet future contingencies and not create for any 

specific purpose.  

 

REVALUATION RESERVE 

Revaluation reserve consists of the surplus on the revaluation of Motor Vehicles as of 31st December 2022. 

 

BUILDING RENOVATION RESERVE 

The Corporation's renovation reserve has been created from the profit by allocating Rs. 100 million a month to renovate the Head office in Colombo 

01 and to construct a building for Osusala Colombo 04.            

     

33.  LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS  

The following legal cases are pending as of 31st December 2024, and the Corporation has been advised by the legal counsel that it is only possible, 

but not probable that the action will succeed. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements. 

 

33.1. Contingent liabilities  

The Corporation is a defendant in elaven cases where legal actions instituted by stakeholders of entities involved, claiming Rs.26.4 million These 

cases are being contested by the corporation and no provision has been made in the financial statements.   

 

33.1.1 LT Application No. LT4/G/28/2016 (Labour Tribunal Galle – Mr. H.C.R Pieris) 

A case was filed in the Labour Tribunal by an employee against the dismissal of his employment. Since a criminal case has been filed in MC Galle 

against the plaint by SCIB of Galle Police Station LT case has been laid by. 

 

33.1.2.  Case No. DSP/ 460/ 2024 Mrs. S.M.A.D.S.H. Sammandapperuma Vs SPC 

A case has been filed by an employee against the Corporation and issued an injunction order regarding the decision taken by the management based 

on the formal inquiry report. 

 

33.1.3. Sadaleka Amila Bashini Senanayaka Vs SPC and Others – 4/2017/Writ 

Above mentioned Petitioner has filed a writ application to quash the procedure followed and all decisions made by the Seethawaka Urban Counsel,  

re-enact all written and verbal agreements and contracts that have been made with the Petitioner and issue a writ to make all necessary arrangements 

to handover the possession of the premises given to the Petitioner by the Urban Council.  

 

33.1.4. Case No. CA/Writ/403/2024 Kish International (pvt) Ltd Vs SPC and Others 

Above mentioned supplier has filed a case in the Court of Appeal for an interim order regarding the deductions from pending orders and forfeiting the 

performance bond. 

 

33.1.5. Case No: 705/24,706/24 and 707/24 Eureka Life Science Vs SPC 

Above mentioned supplier has filed a case in the court of appeal for an injunction order against SPC for issuing debit notes relevant to the NMRA 

Circuler for batch withdrawal and NMQAL report relevant to quality failures. 

 

33.1.6 Case No. 99/2024 Transparency International Srilanka Vs Minister of Finance, Minister of Public Administration and Others 

Transparency International Srilanka filed a case for violating the human rights of the Petitioner by the respondents. 

 

33.1.7 Case No. DMR 01384 -24 and DMR – 01385-24 ( Slim Pharmaceuticals Vs SPC) 

The supplier mentioned above has filed two cases for an injunction order prohibiting the decision to suspend dealings against them until finalizing the 

Arbitration process. 
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33.1.8 Vitromed Health Care, India Vs SPC 

Above mentioned Supplier has initiated arbitration for encashment of performance bond values USD 39,578/- (LKR 11.5 Million) and USD 29,692.50 

( LKR 8.6 Million). 

 

33.1.9 Yaden International (pvt) Ltd Vs SPC ( 28 cases) 

Yaden International (Pvt) Ltd has initiated an Arbitration against SPC to recover the due payments from SPC with respect to the supplies made by 

them. 

33.1.10 Centurion Laboratories (pvt) Ltd Vs SPC 

Initiated arbitration proceeding claiming USD 21,168 ( LKR million 6.1 ) for non-payment for the supply made by the claimant. 

 

33.1.11 Slim Pharmaceutical (pvt) Ltd Vs SPC 

Above mentioned supplier has initiated arbitration against the debit notes raised by SPC for deducting forthcoming payment vouchers of the claimant. 

 

33.2 The Corporation is the plaintiff in five Cases claiming Rs Million 19.2 with legal interest for the damages. 

 

33.2.1 Osusala – Negombo - Case No. L 30202 

Rs Million 3.9 Cash loss reported at Rajya Osusala Negombo as a result of misappropriation of Osusala Funds by the Cashier. This contingent asset 

was not recognized in the Financial Report as the realization was uncertain. 

 

33.2.2 SPC Vs Nestor Pharmaceuticals Limited, India 

A case has been filed by SPC against the M/S Nestor Pharmaceuticals Limited, India for not settling the  Debit Note value USD 41,896                     

(Rs Million 12.2 ) against quality failures reported in their supplies. 

 

33.2.3 SPC Vs Unibios Laboratories Ltd, India and Others 

This case has been filed by SPC against the above-mentioned supplier for not settling the Debit Note value USD 10,604.80 (Rs Million 3.1) against 

quality failures reported in their supplies. 

 

33.2.4. SPC vs Chanaka – CA (Writ) 401/24 

Above mentioned case has been filed by SPC against the  Arbitration decision held by the Labour Department to pay compensation to the claimant. 

 

33.2.5. SPC vs Nuwan Nayanajith – HCALT/69/24 

Above mentioned case has been filed by SPC against the order delivered by the Labour Tribunal for the reinstatement of an employee who was 

dismissed from his employment. 

The Corporation has deposited Rs 5,008,189/- in court accounts and appealed against the arbitrational awards against SPC (Case No. A/49/2021 G.H. 

Chanaka) and (Case No. .13/59/2017 R.M.N Nayanajith) 

 

33.3 Financial Commitments 

Document credit established for purchases of pharmaceuticals as at 31.12.2024 amounts to Rs.15,969 million 

 

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES  

The Corporation's principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 

to finance the Corporation’s operations. The Corporation has trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from its 

operations. The Corporation is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk. The Corporation’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. 

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below. 

Credit risk 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit. 

     2024   2023         

SPC                      Rs.           1,069,146,516 Rs.      1,175,411,631         

DHS                    Rs.         38,106,379,349 Rs.    38,642,167,482      

            

The requirement for impairment is analyzed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. Additionally, a large number of minor 

receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data. 
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The Corporation obtains bank guarantees as security for distributors, Franchised Osusalas & Authorized Retailers. In addition, a premium is charged 

from clients who wish to buy on credit in excess of the bank guarantee limit. 

 

Liquidity risk 

The Corporation's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank. The table below 

summarizes the maturity profile of the Corporation’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

 

Year ended 31 December 2024:              (Rs)  Maturity 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings                          19,872,901,778  OD – Payable on demand 

Long Term Loans                    5,529,455,530 Repayable within 60 months 

Trade and other payables                 14,008,712,717 Usually 03 months 

 

Year ended 31 December 2023:              (Rs)  Maturity 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings                          18,616,639,730 OD – Payable on demand 

Long Term Loans                   7,508,388,874    Repayable within 60 months 

Trade and other payables                17,387,707,916 Usually 03 months 

 

                                   

      2024             2023                                                                

     Rs.                    Rs                               

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings      19,872,901,778   18,616,639,730          

Long Term Loans              5,529,445,530         7,508,388,874          

Trade and other payables       14,008,712,717               17,387,707,916                        

Less: cash and short-term deposits      (9,087,579,645)    (5,539,030,063)        

                              

Net debt              30,323,480,380   37,973,706,457              
   

Equity 
Capital and net debt       30,382,535,638                                 37,878,689,534        
            

        

              

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

35.1 Transactions with State and State Controlled Entities 

In the normal course of its operations, the Corporation enters into transactions with related parties. Related parties include the Government of Sri 

Lanka (State: as the ultimate owner of the Corporation), various government departments, and State controlled entities.  Particulars of transactions, 

and arrangements entered into by the Corporation with the State and State controlled entities which are individually significant and for other 

transactions that are collectively, but not individually significant are as follows:  

 

Nature of the Transaction    2024    2023             

Transactions:       RS        RS                    

Sales -      51,018,099,222   62,948,425,588           

 

Outstanding Balances: 

Receivable from Medical Supplies Division   38,106,379,349   38,642,167,482                          

Receivable from Forces        514,114,504          504,598,941        
Receivable from Government hospitals         96,117,109                     81,439,669                    

Receivable from Other Government Institutions                  33,677,844                         31,949,923                    

                                                                      

 35.2 Key Management Compensation  

The Corporation’s key management personnel include the Board of Directors, Minister of Health Sri Lanka and the Secretary to the Ministry of 

Health.     2024  2023                 

       RS    RS       

 Short term employment benefits          4,550,493/-          2,521,774/-          

                                 

36. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

All the material events after the balance sheet date have been considered and appropriate adjustment and disclosures have been made in to the 

financial statement, where necessary.  
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To be the leading healthcare organization

senring the general public of Sri Lanka by providing safe,
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usage of generic drugs.
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Senrices to the people is foremost

Quality and safety
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Board of Directors Information
Board of Directors
(Draft -Pending Information)

Dr. Manuj C Weerasinghe - Chairman

Dr Manuj C Weerasinghe graduated from the Faculty of
Medicine, University of Colombo in 1998. He completed
his internship at Colombo South Teaching Hospital. Just
after the internship he joined as a lecturer in the Department
of Community Medicine in 1999 and served for 25 years at
the University of Colombo till luly 2024.

He Obtained an MSc in Community Medicine and an MD
in Community Medicine from the Postgraduate Institute of
Medicine and a Postgraduate Diploma in Applied Sociology
from the Faculty of the Arts, University of Colombo. He
completed a post- doctoral fellowship at the Graduate
School of Public Health at the University of Pittsburg,
USA.

He was promoted to Professor in Community Medicine in
January 2017 and served as the Head of the Department of
Community Medicine for 6 years from 2016 to 2022. He
served as Chairperson of the Board of Study in Community
Medicine at PGIM from202l-2023.
Professor Weerasinghe represented the Faculty on the
Board of Management of the Institute of Indigenous
Medicine for over nine years. He was a founding member
of the Chief Medical Officer of the University Field
Practice area, Pitakotte (MOH) for 6 years, particularly
during the COVID-|9 pandamic, and as an advisor to the
National Science Foundation, National Health Research
council, and a member, of the Board of Directors , at the Sri
Lanka Conventions Bureau.
He is a past Vice President of the Sri Lanka Medical
Association, Past General President of the Sri Lanka
Association for Advancement of Science, and currently
South Asian representative of the Governing Council of the
People's Health Movement.
He has published over 55 research articles in index
journals, over 100 conference presentations, many
monograms, book chapters, and research reports to his
credit. Much of his work is related to Pharmaceutical
policy, pharmaco- epidemiology and pharmaco- economics.
He has supervised over l5 doctoral, l4 Master students, and
over 100 undergraduates research students during his
carrier. He has won the presidential award for scientific
publication on numerous occasions.
Dr. Weerasinghe has also serve as a visiting professor and
an examiner in other universities, including Peradeniya,
Ruhuna,Rajarata, Sri Jayawardenepura, Eastem, Open
University, Kothalawala Defence University, TATA
Institute India, International People's Health University and
Gulf Arabian University, Baharen and Coventry University
UK.
Dr. Weerasinghe has contributed his services to the
Ministry of Health as an advisor capacity for over two
decades in numerous committees on public health including
the National Communicable Disease Advisory Committee
and as chairperson of the Strategic Information Committee
on HIV/ AIDS.

He also served as a consultant for WHO, UNICEF,
UNFPA, Save the Children, The World Bank and GFATM
undertaking many assignments.

Mr. M.L. Subasinghe Arachchi - Managing Director

Mr. M.L. Subasinghe Arachchi is a renowned Chief
Executive Officer, an Economist, a Banker and a Business
Consultant by profession. He holds a Bachelor & Masters
from University of Peradeniya and Kelaniya in Economics.
He started his career at Commercial Bank of Sri Lanka. He
has also served as a Lecturer in Economics and Banking.
He counts over 30 years of managerial experience and
served as the Managing Director/CEO for leading private
companies.

With extensive experience in administration and
management in State-Owned Enterprises in the past
decades, Mr. Subasinghe Arachchi has served as the
Working Director of the National Film Corporation of Sri
Lanka, Chairman of the Land Reform Commission of Sri
Lanka and the Chairman of Urban Settlement Development
Authority of Sri Lanka. He presently serves as the
Managing Director of the State Pharmaceuticals
Corporation of Sri Lanka.

Mr. Subasinghe Arachchi is a renowned administrator who
is also known for practicing good governance and leading
institutes towards high profitability with zero corruption.

Mr. S S Wijedoru - Director

Mr. S.S. Wijedoru Obtained B.com (Special) Degree from
University of Colombo and MBA (PIM - SJU) From
University of Sri Jayawardhanapura. Also, he has obtained
LL. B Degree from Open University of Sri Lanka and
Attorney from Sri Lanka Law College. He has successfully
completed Diploma in Human Resources Management
from Charted Institute of personnel Management (CIPM)
and Diploma in psychology and Counselling from Institute
of psychology and Counselling. He is a member of the
National Institute professional Counsellors (N I PC)
He has served North and East Operational areas in Sri
Lanka Navy as a commission Officer during the war period
and awarded war service medals with Riviresa Campaign
service medal and Purna Bhumi padakkama. After that he
worked as a Head of Human Resources in Lakbima
Newspapers (pvf) Ltd. Thereafter He has joined State
Mortgage and Investment Bank and retired as an Assistant
General Manager Human Resources and Logistics.
Presently he is practicing as an Attorney - at - Law and
Notary Public.
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Mr. K D Parakum Shantha - Director

K. D. Parakum Shantha is a retired Additional Surveyor
General and a special grade officer ofthe Sri Lanka Survey
Service, with over 36 years of distinguished service at the
Survey Department of Sri Lanka. He has held key
leadership roles, including Senior Deputy Surveyor
General, Deputy Surveyor General, and Senior
Superintendent of Surveys.
He holds a B.Sc. (Hons.) in Physical Sciences from the
University of Colombo, a Higher Diploma in Surveying &
Mapping, an M.Sc. in Integrated Map & Geo-lnformation
Production from ITC (Netherlands), a Diploma in
Management for Professionals, and a Postgraduate Diploma
in Archaeology.
As a highly experienced surveying and mapping expert, his
expeftise spans geodetic control, GIS, photogrammetry,
remote sensing, land administration, and IT infrastructure.
He has led national projects in surveying, mapping" land
registration, digital data management, and disaster response.
He played a pivotal role in transforming manual surveying
and mapping processes into a fully digital workflow,
enhancing data processing efficiency and ensuring
standardized survey plans and attribute presentation through
spatial databases. His efforts have significantly modemized
Sri Lanka's geospatial data management.
In addition to his professional roles, he has been a visiting
lecturer at multiple Sri Lankan universities, specializing in
surveying, GIS, and photogrammetry. His research
contributions include publications on remote sensing, GIS
integration, and topographic database management in
international conferences.
He is a member of the Sri Lanka Association for the
Advancement of Science and the Survey Institute of Sri
Lanka.

Ms. K V C Dilrukshi - Director

Ms. Chandima Dilrukshi is a Grade I officer of the Sri
Lanka Accountant's Service and currently serves as a
Director of the Department of Public Enterprises at the
Ministry of Finance, Planning and Economic Development.
She has around 23 years ofexperience in the public service,
staning her career as an audit examiner at the Auditor
General's Department and then has joined the Sri Lanka
Accountants' Service in year 2005. During her 20 years'
service in Sri Lanka Accountants' Service, she has worked
in several depaftments, including the Department of Posts,
Department of Management Audit and Department of
Fiscal Policy.

She has served as a Board Director in different public and
private entities, including the National Engineering
Research and Development Cenffe, LINDEL, Sri Lanka
Export Credit Insurance Corporation, Lankaputhra
Development Bank, State Pharmaceutical Corporation of
Sri Lanka, Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Limited,
Insurance Regulatory Commission of Sri Lanka, Litro Gas
Lanka Ltd, Postgraduate Institute of Management, Urban
Development Authority, Ceylon Electricity Board and
National Development Bank. Currently she serves as a

member of the Board of Directors in the Lanka Mineral
Sands Limited and the State Pharmaceutical Corporation

of Sri Lanka. In addition, she serves as a Governing
Council Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Sri Lanka and the Alternate Chairperson of the
Association of Public Finance Accountants of Sri Lanka.
She also serves several technical evaluation committees and
project committees representing the General Treasury.
With her vast experience in governance and public finance,
Ms. Dilrukshi shares her knowledge and experience with
public sector organizations, particularly with State Owned
Enterprises sector as a resource person.

Ms. Chandima Dilrukshi holds an MBA from the
International University of Japan, an MBS from University
of Colombo and she is also a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. She is a B.SC.
Accountancy and Financial Management graduate of the
University of Sri Jayawardenepura and during her Masters
Degree in Japan, she has been awarded the Tuck Scholar
award for best academic performance from the International
University of Japan.
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rentairrr on pruviding.'"Serricc tri thg y*,itrr." b1 r.r{lcring quxlit! assuretj healthcare prrrrlucls at alJirrdahl*
priccs 1o rhe peuplc r:f the country.

Appr*iation & (onrlusirn

I r"-*uki lil.e t* thanh the I lon. Minister $lllealth. lion. Deputy ir{inistcr rl^l lealth. St:(retary t{} thr .-u'n',rtr.v ol"
lltalth arrd t)(her $llicials lirr their $uplxlrt an<! guidance during the yeur 2{)2d, (}ur gratiturhir aisrr e.rtendcri lrr
llre l)irci:tt:r'. f,'lerlicnl Supplies Division irnri r"rthcr ntlicials. I would likc r+ thtrnli |crr*rrall1.t6 the htanagirrg
l)ir*ttrrr atld otlter Btiard cf'l)ircr:t*rs. {ht nrarragtnrent and all emplrrl.*cs crf the C*ip:rntion tLrr ihcii
ulcdicatrun ;ltrd er:,mmittnenl ttrnards achieving nur goals and ubjcctivvr. I woukl alsg liks 1o exlend ml thfinks
tr-r tltc rrrFpliers. dirlrihutorx anil }:ranchisc hlrldrm anrl generol publir: {'crr lheir crnlidr:rrre in 5[r(' arttl tlicir
ilrLrg:;.

I l*rventir hopt t]rat the nants af SPC would r*rnain in the h*artx anti minds r:f all
le*drrrg 5u1'dP r)! rlu.iltly. ellicaci*ur. cnst eflective ilnrg* and rrlalrlrl pruxlucts"

rv6.,v"
(llrairn:arr

Slalc llh;rrnraceuti{al.i (iorprrarirtn oi'Sri l.anka

I- am honared to pre$ent ltl y*u ths annu*l rc1xrrt *f State Plrannaceuticals Ci:rporatiorr
tirr the year 30!4 rrn behell of thr: Bsard i;f Directors. Coing by rhe viri*rr i;f its
fbtrnding father Prrrfessor Senak* Hihile. the $tats Pharmaceuticals Corpr:ration {SPC1
has nt all titncs striven lo provide quulity alsurc<l drugs cl price^,r thar are all'orda$le in
lhe mark*t. F$r the Flast 53 -vears $tlL" hrs been the prornine*r supplicr uf
pharmaceuric*ls, surgieat eunsumable items. laborstnry chenlicals irn<l equipnrent to alI
institufionu adnrinistered hv the health rninistrv.

people cf $ri L,anka as the
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REVIEW

It is a gre*rt privilege for me t* prerent the Mancging Directur's repcrt with
regard li:r the perfurmance of the y*ar 2*2,{.

State Fhannacrutical Carp*ralitrn tSPC) is th* k*y irn;xrrter ol'phann*c.euticsls
*nd healthcarr iteins tcr tlre 'Medical Suppli*s Divixion' uf the Deparfment of
l{ealthcare Services to efisure l}le crxttinu*us supply *f quality-assured

Pharmaceuticals and Healthcare items to (itx'e nment l{r:*pitais. SPC alsu
imp*rt: and sells in the open mar*et through *ur ow,r Ka.lya Osrrsala Outlets.

l^rarrcltirrd $susala rtutlets & {}ictrihiltars to csverl}re sndre is}anri. ln aitditir:n, sc,nre phanrrareutic*l

ittnrr such as J*evani and 6lu*ose arrl nranufacturxd by- lhe $Ff at ilur own Prxiducti*n plant located in

l{athrualnna.

Challerge*

The .,-*ar 2024 has hEen one of both $uh$tsntial progrr$s and nr:table challengcs. Supply chain

disnrptions. price flucuralions, market dynamics and the lingering effbcts of the posl-C$vid economis
land*cape pre*ented signif-rcant hurdles. H*wever. these challcnges *llso ofl"*red valuable lessons and

opponunities to refine our processes and *trenglhen uur ru;alve moving fonvard.

It{avigating Challen ges

During tlre year under review, wc undertook a comprehcnsive restructuring i:f kcy depaftm*ntx w'ith the
primary objective of streamlining procur*ment pxxes$es ta be(sr align with the natioflal guidelincs and

the brsl practices. This initiativc not only enhanqed our opcrational efY'iciencl' but also gcnerated an

additirlnal income of lLc.3.5 billion by implemenling prr:per prac{ices in procurcmrnl proceedings

specialll" on perfornrance b$nd$. significantly conributing to the Cilrp{)ration"s financial stabilit-l'.

81.' thc cnd uf the year under review. recruitment eff$rts were *u{e*ssfully completed,. including the

lilling r-r[ liuy position$ acro$$ the Corporation. Ws alsn placed fi .]trr]n$ r.nrphasis on employr*
development. Outbound training prograrn$ across all lev*ls equipped uur stafl'to navigate chullenges

eflectively. lostering a culture of trust and collaboration. Nearly all emplcryee categories recciyed career-

focuscd training during the year, rvhich helped to build tran$parency and trust, aligning our wcrkforce
with the Corporation's goals. As part r:f our commitmed t* tra{$parency and infbnned c*mpliance" we

successiully organized an awaren*ss prCIgrsmme nith the Commission 1o Investigatr. Allegarions nf
Brihery or Camrption, to educate our *taff on th+ key prcrvisi*ns and impact rlf the Cr:mmissi*n's newly.

enacted Act.

Conducting monthly Raiya Osussla Manager*' lteview and OltS Productinr Developrne*t nreetings
prc,r ided a r,aluabla plat&nn fcrr manager$ to as$ess lhe performanre of rhsir t{ra.ms. Ttrese rreetings also
tacilitated the i<ientifieation of challenges, ensuring that corrective *otion: were xra,ifilv inrplemented to
rnaintain smooth $perations &cross the ltqiya Orusala netu'ork and CIRS Pnr<Juuti*n.

81' the end of the year, ra'e $uecessfully expanded our reach by estnhlishing 10 nrw Rnjya O*usala
branches nationraide. This expansion has strcngth*nsd c,ur ebiliry' to provide high-quality
pharmaceuticals at affordahle priees t'] the general public, further reinfirrcing r:ur positir:n in the industry.

vI
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Llur xpirit *f cull*horation with allthe stalf as one tsam played a cnxial rc,tc in maintaining industrial
p,*ace and crrating a pr$ductivo wgrk environmpnt. Tlxno$Sh open communir*ation, fair negrrtiations. and
a l*sus r:n employee wel{bre, we successfully m inimiaed the riek of labnr dinputes and fosterpd a $trflntf.
urrified rvorkforce (hr*uqlr*ut the veer.

f,)ur P*rformanee for th* yesr !0?{

i\s lhe s*le irnparter of ph*nnacsulic&ls and rnedical <Ievices {i:r t}re government hospitals and the
l*ading irnpofier anil tJistributeir f*r the privete *ector in th* indusrr.v, State Phanna*cutic&ls Curp*ratir:n
remains rommiusd to meeting thn natio*"s demand {trress*nticl medicines whilr rnaintaining an eflicient
xupply chain in the year ?014. Fcr the year ended S lst Drcember ?$24, $PC r*sorded ths foll*rving:

r Prufit Before Tax (PBT): R"s ?,474 Million {r*prexenting a95*/t' grovlth fram Rs 1,268 Millirur
in 2023)

r Total Overheads; trts 5,32fi lvlitlian (compared 1r Rs 6,4S? Millitx in 20?3. resulring in a

reductir:n of I89ro in overheads for the year 3()24)

Despire the decline in turngver from 3*23 tCI 2034. rhe sig*ili*ani increase in profit befbre tax highlights
SP('s effective cosf control and operaticlnal improvein*flts over the previaux year

4rufl

*
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r Pro{it S*fare T*x...

f,rpectations fqr 20?5 for our growth

A; u'e lcnk ahead ta 2035 *nd beyernd, our f*eus will he on rtrr.nsthening partnerships w'ith heatthcare
prcr,iders. govemment ageneies, and other ke5 stakeh*lders to ensure the uninterrupted xrrpply *f
essential healthcarc sertices. We are also cnmmitterl to enhanring our operational efficienc,"- and

sustainatlility. practices, wilh a strnng emphasis on profit orie*tation.

A key priority for ?025 rvill be digitalization and steps arr already underway in this direcrinr with the
,'\sian Developrnent Bank activply supporting these initiatives. We plar tn drive digital transfrrmration,
partiuularly t}rough the ilnplemenlation of an HKP {Enterprise Re*ource PlanningJ }ystem and e-

procuremenl iniliatives. 1'hese efforls sim t* enhance efliciency a*d *J1*cliveness, unlocking subsrantial
growth potential. The benrfits of digitalization include improv*rl elTiciency, greater transparcncy"
slrengthened anti-*orruplion measurs$, and enhanced overall eccnomic and swisl stabiiirl .

(Jur suceess wr:uld not be possible without the dedicatitln of our Manasement team and all the employees

specific*.lly all the trade unions r:f the Cnrpr:ration and we would like tn cppreciate thenr in carn ir:g r:ul
th*ir tasks. We eKtend our sincere thanks tn all stakrholders far the oulstantling service. Let's create a

hralthier luture- rogether.

Mevan L. Subasinghe Arachchi
Managing Director
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. K M D R Dassanayake - General Manager

Mr.Dinusha Dassanayake joined

the SPC as a Management

Trainee on 0l/1211999 and

presently holds the General

Manager's position w.e.f

0110612009. Before appointing as

the General Manager He served

in HR, Administration, Legal &

Commercial Divisions of the Corporation and hold Deputy

General Manager Positions in respective Departments. He is a

graduate ol B.com (Special) in International Trade. from the

[Jniversity of Sri Jayarvardenapura. He holds a Masters degree

in International Cooperation Specializing lntemational

Clommercial Lau' from Nagoya University. Japan. He is an

attorney-at-Lau. He has also obtained Post Attorney Diploma

in Intemational Trade Law fiom lnstitute of Advance Legal

Studies of Sri l,anka Law College and an Accredited

Commercial Mediator.

Mrs. Nimmika Thusari - Deputy General Manager

(Human Resources & Administration)

Mrs. M.R. Nimmika Thushari

.ioined the SPC as Deputy

General Manager ( HR &
Administration) with el'fect

from. 01.08.2018 She holds a

Bachelor of Science ( Human

Resources) Special Degree from

the University of Sri Jayawardanepura. Post Graduate

Diploma in Human Resources Advancement and Master of

Human Resources Management from the University ol

Colombo. She has more than 25 years' experience in the field

of Human Resources Management and Administration.

tx



Ms. Hiranya Sammandapperuma - Deputy General

Manager (Technical & Laboratory)

Mrs Hiranya Sammandapperuma

joined the SPC as the

Management Accountant on Olst

luly 2007. She has more than 24

years' experience in the field of
financial management.

Management Accounting &

Auditing. She is an Associate

Member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri lanka.

(ICASL) & Certified Management Accountants of Sri Lanka

(CMA) & awaiting Membership of Association of Chartered

Certified Accountants ( ACCA- UK).

She obtains Bachelor of Business Administration with honors,

specialization in finance. from University of Colombo in 2001.

She is holder of MBA from University of Colombo.

l\ls.DNDewasurendra- Actg. Deputy General

Manager (Finance)

Ms. D N Dewasurendra joined

the SPC as an Accountant on

0l't March 2000. She has more

than 32 years' experience in the

field of ,\ccounting, Financial

management & Auditing. She is

a member of AATSL & has

completed her exams a1 ICASL

up to the final level l. She holds a Bachelor of Commerce

(General) degree from the University of Sri Jayawardenapura

& Master of Business in Finance (MBF) degree from the

University of Kelaniya.

Mrs. Ayanthi Alwis - Deputy General Manager

(Procurement & Imports -

Pharmaceuticals)

Mrs. A H Alwis the Deputy

General Manager Procurement

& Import Pharmaceuticals.

holds a Bachelor of Science

Management Degree ( General)

and Master of Business Administration from the University of
Sri Jayawardanapura. She is further a Diploma holder in

Public Procurement and Contrmt Administration from

SLIDA.

She coordinates and manage procurement activities of the four

units falls under her purview meeting challenging time

frames.

4q-ffi
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Ilr. C Asanka lroshana - Deputy General Manager
(Marketing)

Mr. G. Asaanka lroshana joined

the SPC as Deputy General

Manager - Marketing on

20.08.2024. He has more than l4

years' experience in the field of

Marketing Management. He is

an Associate Member of

Chartered Institute of Marketing

(UK) and he is also a member of Sri Lanka Institute of

Marketing. He managed the Rajya Osu Sala network of SPC

consist of more than 60 outlets island wide and Ratmalana

Main Stores. He holds a Bachelor of Science with honors

from Wayamba University of Sri Lanka Master of Business

Administration fiom New Buckinghamshire University (UK)

and Post Graduate Diploma in Marketing from Chartered

lnstitute of Marketing (CIM-UK).

xt
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STATE PHARMACEUTICALS CORPORATION OF SRI LANKA
MANAGEMENT TBAM - Senior Management

Ms. A H Alu'is D.C.M. (Procurement & Imports) I

Ms. M R N fhushari D.G.M. (Human Resources & Administration)

Ms. S.M.A.D.S.H Sammandapperuma D.G.M. (Technical, Lab & production)

Mr. C A Eroshana D.G.M. (Marketing) (From 20.08.2024)

Mrs. D.N.Devasurendra Accountant - Revenue

Actg. D.G.M- Finance

Mr. M.A.V.l. Kumarasiri Field Manager (Monitoring of Distribution Systems)

Mr. D.P. Ajith Liyanage Manager - Management Information Systems gil 25.07 .2024)

Mr. P.K.R. Femando Manager Wharf

Miss. C.S.Withanage Manager - CPU

Mrs. P.A.U.Wijewardana Legal Officer & Secretary to the Board

Mr. P.M.B.R.Somathilaka Manager - Production (Till 13. 12.2024)

Mr. A.P. Hapangama Accountant - Book keeping

Mrs. L.W. Damayanthi Accountant - Salaries (Till 12. 12.2024)

Mrs. M.A.S. Karunaratna Accountant

Mr.D.K.A.P.Dassanayake Manager-Administration

Mr. K.D.F.N.Perera Manager - Sales

Mrs.D.D.S.Tharangamala Manager-Procurement

Mrs. R. P. Withanage Manager - Procurement

Mrs. K.C.S. Perera Accountant - Rajya Osusala

Mr. M.A.D.S.S. Munasinghe Manager- Imports

Mr. M.K.C. Krishantha Manager - Rajya Osusala

Mr.W. Jayantha Manager - Rajya Osusala (Till 19.06.2024)

Mr.M.R.M. Rifkhan Manager - Surgical

Mrs.E.M.H.N.T.K.Ekanayake Manager-Technical

Mr. H.N.J.lndunil InternalAuditor

Mr. W.A.T Premawardhane Manager - Rajya Osusala

Ms. I.c.w.S wimalasena Manager- Research & New projects (Till2i .04.2024)

Mr. P.A.S. Pathirana Accountant - Stock & pricing

Mrs. E.K.P.A. Priyadarshani Manager- Promotion & publicity

Mr. W.K.M.S. Wanniarachchi Manager - Post Delivery Operations

Mr. M.A.S.G.T.Perera Manager- Stores & lnventory Control

Mr. B V A M Abhayawardane Manager - Rajya Osusala (From 03.06.2024)

Mr. D C S Bandara Manager - Rajya Osusala (From 23.07.2024)

Ms S R Kalpage Manager - Human Resources (From 24.01.2024)

Ms. w A V Samanthi Manager - (Quality Assurance Lab) (From 16.04.2024)
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{,\N( il_ R}:p(}R't'(}F'r}{[ $(]AI{t} {}F I)tRr.("t-(}Rx

lhr, tltrald *1"l)irr;r:lors rrl thit { r}t.p(}rntioll liar lr}c;nirrr: in
prnrclltiltli iheir ,\trrrual R$ltrxt togef hcr Vr ilh iitt' ;ri.tditsrl
trnilnctili slutctncnli klr lhlr*ar cllllcrl I ilt I)cr:t:nrirr:r lilJ,l

tt}RltA ilr}t\
\tirtu l)harma(euticillr L orpur*tit,rn iSp( t) \r.a$ cstahlished
';rrder Scerion 2 ol Stats lrr<iustrinl ilr.rrpr:u"atirtns Alri Ntr. ,le of
tqi? h) {he lja/rtte norit'ication publishr:il rn rirc (iur.crnrrrenl
( iaz.ette Na. I i9?6ill o1' l3nd Septcrrrbcr I Q7l . urriJcr urr orilel
rrinde h1, thc !linrstcr ol'lndustrisri tnrt Scicntitlt Al'l'itirr \vith lhc
approval ol the (i0vernntcnt sl: Sfi L.rnka l he initial capitnl of"
thc cor'pnratiorr wrs Rupecs (!n(: milli()n.

'{CCOIiNTINC POI,ICITS'l'lre accounting policies ariopted in tht: prcpararion of thc
tinnncial itatemsnts arc gir,;,n ofi the pngcs 5 to 15.'l herc rrere
nt changrls io thc account ng poliriss lrdopted hr thtt (iorporation
tirrrirtu tlrc \ cirr under rc\ ic\\.

COINC (IO]\CT]RN
I hc I:intncinl Stdernunts arc prc5rare<i irascti on thr: goina
r.:{}ilfcrn ronceft. lhc []o;rrtl i)l' [)irc(:l{}t.r rii}ti:;l'ii:il thnt Ihe
L itry111iq1i1111 h.lr aCl*e;uatc r!:!()ilr(as {r) i(tntinrtd il: (!l)itirtrnn5 ri}
I I rr ii rrc.c(:{.:irit} k: lirturr"

rtLsl L rs
l'hr reriults tbr thc ,sear ;,uil thc ('ititrrtu,:r in l)quit\ ar( lrl (rul in
thr' ( ornfltq"hfntile llrconr* !tutL.t.r.trrll ;r*ti irr thr 5tlftrnrllt {rf
t'hangc-s rn liqrrir.,.

REVIEw.. Or BUSINISS
l"hrt *lflte $l'rrlJrrirs ol' the (. orp0rar.ion &r i.rt .) I l)crvrrrhr:r l0l4 is
irr. o{rt irl th(: Stlitctrrdnt $l l:inancilrl }\rsition itlld it\\rt}Jrn(:nt ol'
lhr: ('orporutitn durint the ljr)ancitl 1'r:ur ir {il,r:r.r iu thr
\'lanaging I)ir{fi$r's Rrvie rr ot'thc ,\rrnrral lt*p*rt.

PROPIIRT\" rLANT & [.Qt ]rPllI[:N]
Iirr: trror.yfidnlr irr lrro;tr:rlr'. l)lirrrl & I,quiprtlcilt rli.rrinu thr: r,lar
;lrc:i{t a)llt ifi \$tc N(). 16 l0 the iitranuiul rtilt(ril(:i)t\. lhl^r,rlu*
';h()rl,n thcrLrln ts n$l trtirlfriilllr rlrt'lr,rcrrt licrrr its ,.:urrcrl rrrirrhct
,,;rittc

\tAt\ AC'rtVtT IHS
\lirirr iteiiritics (Il the {.'()rpr,rrlttrr ilrr.

.'lrnporl" Purchasc" $a|;s & Disrribution ol lharnracrufical\ nnd
llcalth ('trrc ltcrrrs in lhe r4icn mlrl"r:t.

r lirrptlr{ &. Suppl.y l,harrnitr:*uticals and l,lualt]r (.larc lilurs t0
thc l)*parlrnenr ol' llealth S{rlir(}.

. \lanulfi(lurint: irrtd lvlilrIcfrrit .lr;.,r,irni)r (rlur:t.r rt l"k:nr,r.l
Hclr:i{)\.i.tlu ( rcan1.

e l'r,*idint rtedir;al ttsts lntl llhorrtlor-t scrliccr;.

-\,,'tiritics ol'thc ( (lrp()ration liale rrrrl rhrnq*rl ntirrsrirrllr li*nr
tl't' l:l.t lin:rttrtLl rcar

R}-Sf,R} IiS
irrlirl rcscrre ol ittt {irrllorl lirtrr anrl lN i:orrrporilir.rn hlr:: h*en

._*irr:rr in lh* \tillenlent cl ( hitngrls rn l:quit_r

DIRL("TORS
llirr:ctrtr iil'th{: ri}iF(}r-i,}1itr_r as lrl il" I)ccsrrrber l{}f4 irrir: u:,
litlir'rl -^

Ilr. I j Airth ]l'letilis {" hairman ('l'ill _ir} 09:{ti4i
l)r ll \1 A l"hrlalinrathna i harrnrarr (lrrrrn {tl.l0.l0f{ ro i: tr I :0:{l
I)r [{ { Weerasrnghr {'hairmarr (From 2: ll.2t')4t
Mr M l, luhnsirrghe \rat:lrei* Managing l)rrcctor il ronr {}l.t}1.3t1...1)
[)r. Uhurlhaka de Srlva l.)rrector I I ill I] II :{}1,1 }
Prof R M {) Medegedtl* l)ireok,r il ill :s.(,tl:(}24}
l\4rII hl]er*ra
L'1s v-l {-iarrgalharan

I)r { 1. l, .ltillattu
{,1r $i ! l. l)ikrrkr}ri
1!1r.1. I) \\'cerarathne
i\4r. S s n'Lt$d0r$
\1r Parahum Shanthi)

Direstor ( lnrm l ll,{}-1.:014 to l j. l :,1("t;1,1 }

[)rrector {'l,ll l:. i].:(}3{i
l)rrcctcr {}]nrnr ll.l).101.{l
l)ireclor q!"ronr l2 l:](]lJ)
Duectrx' (tr(Irn ll l2 ?lJ?4)
l)rrec(or (l'runr ll I:.1(}2,1)
l)irccltrr i[nrnr ll. l:.:0]+)

AIiDI"I COMMII'TI;},
i\utlil r0nrmitt0e ol'thr' { r}rp{}rirti(x} is consl.itut$d irr ;rcc(}rdiltrgcr
rrith tirrl prnvisirxrs rrt iluhlic linterpri-ses (iur<lcline; l<rr .lrorrii
g()tjcmAil{* lhe Audit ( rxtrrnitt*c repon is $ircn in pitgd \,i{) \!-

Ei}IPl,OYilIf,NT
Sl)(. conlinurld trt inrpl*tnent nppropriatc llunran R*:{rr,rrrr
lVlanugcnrr:nt pollcios *nri prnclicer. t(, cnhaflcc cnrplnvce'r tkilli,

.S"I'A TI"ITORI PAY i\I T"NI'S
lhc l)rrcctors. trI th(t hrril ot thrir knnrr,ir:dgc;rnii lrt'ltrt ;rr,
\atil,i$il thirl nll stttutor- palmrtnts in rclulir:rt lo elllI)l{)tr.r] ,|,,1
the (.irilcnrrrcrrt o! Sri l.unka har r: hc*n nladc up ro alirt(:

ENVIROI\ M T\I'AI, PROTN.(.TION
The (irrporlrtirrtr h*s ,lrlt cilgilll*(l in an-l irctilities \\hirir \\{,iillt
ht detrimenral to th* iin\ ironmcnt.

coNTRtBt :Ttt)l\ T(} 
.I'ilr coy liRN ]\t }:5iT

lhc lurptrration hos pairi l(r,212 nrilliun h-v tlt* rra-r (rl'lrlt,,rrr,.r
fn\ I{} ihc (i$vcrnnrenl -l 

rclsurt

CORPO&{TT: $T}CIAT, RESPONSIBI I,.I I'\'
Dunng thr:,\'*ir thr tiorporilrtion {:(}nliihrrldd lts^ 11.7.i{}.hi1 , ti,r
ch,uilnhl* pilrpo)d.

REI,AI"[:P PAH I'I 'f RAI{SACTIONI;
Rtl*ter.l lllrl_t trfins*uti{rnr atre discloscil in \lrtc i5 tt rhr
l;'inanr:ia.l Stnternents.

P0S'f BAl,AI"iCn.qiilt:]:'f [Vf NTS
!ier clcnts havc $(l:urrod sincc thc []irlancc !hrt(t iJatt:
nhii:h u,oulJ rcilillr(: ililiilstnients t(). ur clisclfistrre til. lhil
tlnancial stitlrrienll

.,\pP0il\ I tlt t":\"r t}r A 11Dt'l-oR$
ln tcrnr: tl th* prrrrniim ol- finance ,\0t 1971" {[ic ,\rriiilor
Ocrrclirl rr the Auriitor',)l'the ('()rpor[tion ani'l huii r.llrrisri otrt hi:
unrrrrrrl rtutlil rrt [hi: lin*ncial activitics $l rh( (.'(]rpor&ti0n ti.ir rlrr:

-reitt' *trded lst l}.:urrrrh<tr 3{ll-1.

Bv 0rdrr ol thc Ilo*rrl

Anurrdhn Wijnyrxrrelana
l".egal tltlir;e r,'5er;rrtsr..' to the []r]ard

\ilr
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('ortstituf ion of the Audit ( umrni{tae

I hr Arrciit {^rlnrrnittee cqrn*ist: ll Thrr:e \*n-[:]r.*r:util.e
[)ircct*r"r ol'rhq: Ilrard. 'lhe Dirsslor rtho r*prt:senls lhir
(itrreral I rcnsun, wnlrlrl functir:n as Cliaintlan ol tht:
( orrrrritil:t. l.)ur^irrg thr Iirrarrei*l -r'ear ended il" [)eccrtrber
201,1" frrllowirr!: rncmhrrs ilttendrd til the lue*tirrgs rrf lhc
4utiii ('r,rnnrirtee,

ILerornmend*tionr $f the Audit ()arnrnittee

l...ndcr th* cuidnnc* of the Arrdit fonrmittce. an appr$r,*d
lnternal Audit u*rk plarr rvas rarried oul by the ltrternal
..\u<iit Divisi*n ot the Corporation during thc year under
revie* tnil srrhrnit rucomntendtti$n$ 1$ the Board rl'
I)irur;trrrr antl lh* \{anagerrrent oi' the Corporali0n to (akc
nee*ssar]. actiotl$ [rr th* L'inancial losses. deficiencies and
Iir,ruds idelltifi*il rhrtur{h the Audit Queries of thr l\,iation*i
Audit oil'ice ilrid thii lnternal Auiiit Qucries, Further. the
,nfernal .\uilit Divisit'rn conducted l,'inancial and System
..\urllt t* elirrrinatc irrelficicnt proccdurcs. improvc rhe
internnl contrrrls. rririmiee fhc lcsses and possihl* instanc{s
rrf l'r'autls $nd err{.}r5.

\leetings

During, tlrr .r'etr l(tlJ. t*o Audit C'omrrrittee mectinas were
hcld and ( onrnrillr;e har suhrriitlrd its comnrents on tlrc
identitled tlefici*rlr:ics an<l recornnrendations to the Board *l'
l)irestcn and \linaserrrent. Accordingly" it is r:oncluded
thiil considcrin!-I tlre identified dellcisncies irnd
reconrrnendation\. th{i t{ighcr Management *hould hare
heerr tal,eil actions u.ilh mors aecountability to rectit-v.. tht"
identified deflcien,:i*r and reconxnendations"

illalarrnalhv (i*ngnthar*n
("hnirperson of thr Audit Committer

\ I rs. \{alilrnrilthv (iangarlraran

Pr*l' I)usll*ntlra \ladag*dara

t.)r, Chinthi*a lle Silva
\'lr.PLKllerera

("hairpersun

\lemher {t:p tcr

:5.0q.:0:.1I
-- \lcmher

iVlerntrer { t"rom lll.0:i"10":{i

('hiet' lnrer"nal ,,\uditor ol the l\..linistr; of' Health. $eni*r
.,\srr. Auclirnr (iencral ol \arional Audit 0{1icr anql .,\ssr.
.{uditor (ieneral ot' \atiural ,\udit Oflics ol sp(' n.crc
p*rlicipaterl trr rhe (lonrnrittee fulcelingr as ()hscrycrr.
f,,),rrd :irlcr(rar\ ilnd thc lntcrnai Auclitor functionetl as thc
Seurelarv trl lhe ("irntnrillec nttd ('onvgner re$peclivel\.

I'he l.'unctions of the .tudit ("ommittee

Iire rnairr lirnclions ot'the Audit (.onrmittee ;lre to rcricrr
.rrrd nronitor inlernrl controls r,rl'the (.ru-porariorr antl assist
thc Board lrl' Directorr bl reviewing and rnaking
recomnrerrd$tions t:n all aspects *f audit arxi {inancial
;rcti\ itic! rllhe C'orporation. During rh* year under rcviell-
thc (,-ornrnitte( attended lo lirllowing matters.

l. Rcl'ierv arrd cr.Rluatc the internal c()ntr()l slstetltl
nrrd re*nnrnrurd rnod i li catiuns rl lrere ttrcessar). "

:. l{eviurv nnd approvc Internal Audit lrlarr tbr thc
3'car ?()l{.

1" I{er ieu lnternal Auditrlr'r repoil5. antl rn,rnifor
n1ijl1fige"ntent^$ rcsponsirrBness to thc lindings and
r(rolllncndations oi' the lntcrnal Arrrlitnr antl
subrnit thc ('onrnrillec recomrnendatiurrs lo th*
l]oartl of Directorr for nece$$ar] actions.

-1. Rer.iew of rhe Audit Queries ol Narianal Audir
()ftlcc nrrd the mattsr$ r.aiserl hy thenr in the reports
rn tonns of scction lj(7) {a) and l.{ (l) (c) ol.rlre
Irinance Act No. l8 ol'1971 and suhnrit rhc
('ommitlec reconrmendations to thc Board oi
t)i rectoni firr nt:cmsary &ctians.

i. l{evirrv ol' inrplemurtation of recolxrnerrdations o|
thc ('*nrmittee ol Puhlic lintetprises tCOPH).

\ I\.
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( r)rf{}r':tirl (inrcrnatc* ii Illt l*till -\\:t{tn h} uhich
rlrilil'ri/rxiolii *rtuhlish il |11(chilnisifi lor th* *llrctirc
r*ilizulirrrr rll" rr:surrrc*!. tlirr:ctrtr rtnil i$nlrol rrt tltc
rfrll;iniri,lirur in th* h*it int*r*st l,-}l'all (atcg{'trti$$ r}l'
*tuk*hrtlil*rr, l h* prim*ry r{Un(},t5i hi l i{} tor (.ior.r<"i (ior ernanei.r

li*: *it|: ttrc {,'hairm:rn irrrrJ the liolrrd ll" l)ircclors nl thtr
( fi1'fl)riltirlll^

DrRL"(-.r{}RS

N,tcmherr ll lh* l"lourd ol' l)irccirn shoukl hlru thc htghcst
profcs*ion;rl anri l]crs$ial *thics and ralucr couplcd ri'ith thoir
erpcrienc* in rclutcd fiekl-

r 'lhs ("h;rirrurn and 5 other l)irrctors arc appointrd hr thc
lkxr. l\tinicrur oi'ilealth l'ronr among prlsons uho trppeur
tl thr: lllirrisLcr lo hil\'e widc erperirni:* in anrl
q ua) iiii.:rrlir.rn

. ,.\ rupr*scntatir* lr1" tltr: (i*rrsral l'rcorurl is ntminatcd h1

thc \.linistrr r1l l"iniil((,

nOARCI $lgrTtlic

Ihc lloard meeting: rrrc schcdnlctl b,r pnrridinr ril{tlurle
notice Io {:ni}hlt: the l)ir*utors rnrl Man;rprnrcnl i.} }Trr.fat( ilJi

the k*1 lnd slr-irtcgir: inlirrnralitxt rcr4urreil ltr rlrlihcr.rrrurr iri
thc mceting:i. 'l"hr: Dircettrs alc prrivided rr ith the .\genrht iln,l
[]t*rd paperr ;rt lr:rrrl :r:\'crl r"lats bclirre *aclr rtrr:elirr5 r":ir rlrr

thenr *r;ler.luatl lirrr l(! stud; th* ronl*nt:- llelth ol tlrt:
Diviqionr attr'rril thc li*arti ntsctingr h1 invitatiiut ls ald uhetr
rrquired lo pr*s*nt adilitional inlirrnrltirn antl pror idc tirlthrr
eluritl, tu thr l]uartl-

I*tlv* Buaril rnetltinpl \r'crc son\.crrrd ,.lurirrg tlre "rcar urrJ
lhr atlr:ndilnc* ol'thc [']rr;rril rrcrnllur: nre ;r' lirlLru *

1IT A ]iiAC f, M I N'I' CO!T }IITTUf,

'l hc tr'lii*agernent { irrnmitler: conrprires I lcarls o1' thr
I)r:partmunts rll'lhe ("alrporirtirrn r:hailrd h; thc ( hairrrrrlr. Ihr
ll{rnag*rncnt Cornurittec ilt itr turolings car*lullr pelur*ll all
polie) mfiltcrs rhen relr:r'r*d inrrl illrdr thc irtrplurrrrlitatirrn *i'
tl*cisinn"s takul lrelirrr th(\ ucrri rclcrretl lo thr) llo;tril r)1'

lJirec(ilrr lirr *pprirvll and coficurrcncc. 'l o rrrrhlc ll]ir lrr(].{rs\
and l{} ar(rirl ln1 ilela1 s. the iUanilgemr.nt ('inilt}litle* ,lldft$
ilnu$ ii rtt(liltlr rnd riccisions rr*rc L*Lcrr. Ilte \.lsnrrsefirent
( ontmiltcc lrrrd tuo nrc*tinps tlurirrg lhe r cur.

!tanre of the Board
Mcrrher

Po*ition Duration rrf the period 0f thr
flppointment$

Atterrdance
Eligible

l)r \1 (' \\trjriliin$.he ( hairnrnn l;rtm 21. I I.2{}24 t.r

\1r \'l i. Srrharuglre 
'\rarhrhr lvlmagrng Dirr'{t{n l'rom (,1 .() L?fi?.+

llr l. l 1", \lanirllu Niln-l,recutil'* l)irect0r [rom I2 l].101* til

l\,lr K V t'l)ilnrkshi hl()r-l :xccuti\.d [)rrscl(]r lronr l2 lJ.l(J4 lil

Mr h l ) \\'c*rilrathne Nrrn-li.recutirr hircctur Fronr l2.ll.)0!;l lrl

Mr 5li Wijedtm Nt.rn-llxecutivu Dirrctor I'rrnr ll ll.?{r).} l/l

\{r Parnlunr Shuntha Nrxr-[rceculiyu I]truclor Irronr ll.l3"2tl2{ li )

Rtrignril

l)r lr..\ \h:nrjrs t lurirurarr ljr,rm I ?.{}ll :1}:i r{) "i{} l}().){r-" I
l{) l1)

l)r ll \1 .t"l'lrilakrrathna ( hairman Irr*nr {}l lt} :r):4 kr ::. I L:{}:"i l1l

l'rl1 l{ \l I) \ladsgrdnra Non-[ireculiye I)ircctrrr lti

I)r ( lrirtthrtka ds \ilva N()n-l;reorlli!* nirector l(l I I

llr l) I ii l'trcra ir,ion-l\ceutive Dirtctur f

irh. lr'1 (iang*thar*n Non-l.ixceutiyc I)rrector I nxr ].tr.{)i :{}:^i l{r ll ll.ll}j"} lilr | 1

XV

l]rorn 0? (]q l(]11 ({} l: l: :i)::+
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\rirlir {. !}rnilrilrc* ir conslituteil in irccordanuc rlirh thc "}\rhlic
I:rtt{rfrri:(:s { iuithIinr lirr {iorrd litrrrnzutEc"

llrr' .\urlit ( tinrnifirlc is ilppointcd h1 thc Boilrd *nd
crrr*lrirci (hrr'i: nurr .* r\ccuti!r [)irectors {rl'the f$rporatirx.
IJirt'('lor rrlll rcl:rrlsurls \linistrl rrl' l:in.ln{:* uhuirs the
L *rnrl illrc.

l he .\*rlrt {.'<lnrru itter: inilcpuntlcntir exarnincs and r:valuafes
llrt ;rc1ir rltcs rrl lltr: {'grplralittti. lntetnal .,\urlit lunctron
crirrirrl lrrl irr "rtr,:orrlanr:* rrilh 'lntcrnal ,\utlit []lan" is
;tppror*rl hr thr,\Ltriit ('*mmittcc rrith the notiflcati*n ol'thc
.'\ilditUr i,f r1{lf:}1.

Ilre .\lltlit ( trrrirrrrIcc rL.\ic\\ (rt'lntern*l Auditor'r l{rpr)rti
ilnrl ( rir\ iirttln*tlt /\udit Rcporls anrl lirllo* up ol' thcir
rdc(lnlnlcnd;tlionr ;rrc irnplcrrrcnt*d through the lloilrd" thu

'\ur,li1 ('*nrnriilec also ulsurci th4r the ('orpor*tion ha:
prr!rf\r rrnrl nrsuhanisnrs in pltcrt to identifr risLs Lrr;th

ljnancial lnrl oJrclalirmal irntl thitl ri:k arc mana$ed andl
;ril,lrcsr*ci lhlaugh ;r *cll-dr.:llncd acli{}n f hn.

l)rrrirr$ thc prrirrtl unrl*r rr:r,ieu'" 'l rvo Audit (lomrnifice
rrl\'alitu:i rr c|C Itcld.

\nme rf thr' \lemhtr Fo{tion tllcndrnrc

Its l\'lalmnrthr (ranqathnran
( hairFKrs*n

2i2

lltrrl l{ \l I 1 \lad(jc{{r!

\'lrnrher
r t.l0 I r_\

13 {}ri :{li.{ 
'

)rl

l)r. ('hinthllra I )c \ilva \'h:nrhrr 1i)

\,Ir l'i N t'irtill

l{cnrhtr
{ l"t()nl
{}7 {18 f{Uji i/:

Rl.lt I 1\ [.R.\-ilo\ lr0l.l(]]'

( r)rflrrrlr{)n-5 renruncrati{rn policf is sel (}ul {}t1 th{
rccrxnrnr:n,.iat ions o l- l he ]llnrrapclrtun l \erl icc.' [ ]epanmr:nt ol'
lirc (icntlal Ir*surr.

l)rrcr,tlrr'r ;rll,rrriuri,r(r anrl prrquisitcs urti dfcidc{,I ilirii P111i 111

.r(c{}r(hntr \! r,h lh{ upplicahlc (irculars in rr:liilrilrr hr
;rllr,* ;irit.'r ailrl fc|quisiler 0l' dircet0rs r:l' ('oraoralions is:uctl
hr thc ( 'tnrrill l tt'irsrlry.
I lrrpioi cr'\" sltlilritl-{ ;rrr p;rid {'n lslurJ scirl{:s prrpilruil l'r)
( 'lrp(rritl;*r). hustti nrt lh* uirr":ular No f ol' l{} l(r of th!:
l)up;rrtrlrrrrl rrl \1;rtragerncni Srrr ices r)l^lht (ir"'rlrltill I'reasru"1,^

,\ pr'rlotntrltcc inr,'ctrtilc sdlrcntc is in plar;e t<l iink rr;ri'trdt
,lrt'..11' t,, llrt [g11,,,,,', ll, .a

RrsK \t,\ \A(; ti i\t r,N"r A N D tNTInNA L ('ON"I'R0t,S

I hc llir*etllr eonlirnr thilt lhe]. ltave rertr.*r"d thu
,;t'li'r:tir une sr ()l' lh. s\ sltlllt5 rl' risk ntnagcfiunt altd intcmul
.rlntr'()li *hich opcr;rtcd tluring thr: prri{}d c{}\rirtid hr th*sc
lln;utcrirl \l;itilltL'ilts ;rn(l uf-t(l-datc ol thii rcpofi,

Nuttonal llr*(ur*rneili {iuiifulines arc litlloued hr thr
c{}rf(r;ition irr otrJ*r [r mlirrtrrin thc lrilnspirrencr ul' thr;
lrirnl*rli{)r1$ itnd thrrrb\ gir'ing *qu*l r}pp{u"tunittcs tl)
intrrcstud parti*s.
'l'he .{nnunl l}udgct u,hir:h inuludrs th* i:upital hudgur rrr*
*pprrtr'etf h1 thc llorlrrl imd tirrr.r'arderi to ltlinistr"i*s ol'll*alth
& f:inanee ${inisrn.
.\r fcr thr requircrrrr.l)ii ol'tlle d*panrncnt rf puhlic
enlcrprir*r. ir'"rtrng*m.nt\ hnrc hcen initiat*tl ro apprrint a Risk
('omnrittec tu irlentifi & rrulrrut,,: risk prolilr ul'thc
('nrporulion.

INI'l:RIAL AI.:DI'I'

'l 
he nr*irr lirrus tJ'lhrl intenial .\udit l)iiiciorr is to crxrtltrer ,rrr

intl*pcni.lcnt r*ri*rr *n thc or*rtll prelaililrs s):ton1 ril'
inlcrnal rrtntnrl h'. *r ;tlrulrng thf il(lfqu!t{\. intcltrit\ . iu1(l

elJcctirrlnuss ol' intcrnui tontrolr an(l fiitkos recrxnmcndaltrrn
to thc klilnng*ilrffit lrl itr*nglh*n th* intcrnti $(Itlr{)l!. I h(
lnlernal ,,\udil r-cgul;r'{,\ rrpi}rtril lrr thr; ('}rainni}n (}n thc
adcquircl' *ntl *l'fictir in*sr ol inlernal contmls anrl
complirnce uilh lilnr ;*ld frgulations and rstablishrtl policir:s
;lll(l frorf(lurr': 0l'lirq t rr11"n1n1i1ry1

ACCOIrttTABlt.tTl T(, Tlt}] cov['Ri\iur:N'r As THI
K[I $IIAREHOLI}[R

'lh* ('orporutirrn har rcguitr diuhrgue *ith thr: llrrn. \,linistcr
and thc S(:(rctnri'^ Llini'trr rrl'ilcalth. irlro prridc rhc lloard tu
se{ clcirr dircctilrni irn{l str;rtc*ir: oh"fi:ctilur to lrr;1{:hiij1,cij.
llerir.L':. rx requircd hr tht (icner*l 'lruirsurl ol"rhe \.linistrl
ol' Iri*ancr. the ( orptra{ion liinvilrdcd a l}usint-<s l}lrrn for
thrr:r: rrar:;. ,{pu11 lirw rhlt Annual lt*pon, ,{,nnuitl Accountr.
,\nnurtl lluiigetr, {Juiu,tt:r}\ l)r:rlonniltr('c l{r:pcrts itrs
l"or*arilcd l() lh0 i\{inirtr\ o1'llr:ultlr itnd l}ulrliu I:rrtrrpriicr
[)$pilrtlnont <rl ( ienrrill I rcirsrirr'"

.tnnual Rcport cornpri:ing arrr.litcd llnitnciil slirtcm{nts i}nr!
cttrrr:rlt pfrl()ffriuiui: i: tirhlrd iil l)arliunrcrrl lt}r rclicri hr thtr
m*rlhers ol llarliunr*ni.

xvt
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t.'nder th* Financc Act Nr: lll ol"l97 l, Diriictors of'tlre (.ilrpe)r*tl(!lt have rcsp*nsibilin ttr ensurirrg that

the C*rpr:ratiln kceps pruper hool's r*:l'ac{ounts ofall the transacli*nr *nd prepares fllrancial str.lcments

that gir.r: ff true and lair vierv uf thr state r"r{: afftrirs and *fthe protit iloss fhr tlrc yenr. Acc*rdingly. thc

I)irectors have directed the (iorporatiorr to maintain proper hookr ol auc*unts and revier.rsd the tinancial

reporting sy*tem at their regular nrferings and thrnugh the ,4udit f *mmifirc

ln preparing the llnancial statements exhibited in this Annual Reporl" Ilirectnrs have consiclered adopting

appropriate Accounting Policies un a c*nsistent tlasis and supportctl h; re*stxable and prudent iudgnrents

ancl crtimates-

The Directt:rs have ti:ken such steps as ilre reasonably upen tii them tn safcguard tlrc assets iif the

L.$rporati{)n anr"l lrr prevenl *rrd tJslecl liauds arr,"l *ther irrcgularities^ In this respect, the Direut.ors have

institutcil an ct't'ectivc anrl cnrrpreherr$ir.c s3.'stern ol'irrterrral controls cornprising trl'intcrnal cherk. irtcrnfll

aLrdil and flnancial and crther uonlrqrlr ruqr.rircrl to uarry'out the operations nl'th* Corp<)ratiot.l in ilrr rrrd*rlr

lltatttler. {r"r sa{bguarr{ iil lrssets rrtd securc ar far as prulcticahle thr accuraey rrnd reliahilitl'nf'oirr rcer.rrels,

l.

*,*ffiil*,
Secrct;rn' tri the lluartl

xvlt



Human Rssourc*s Analysis

m Highor Managt,rnent

N Middle Management

,, Junior Manflgers

I Managernent Assistant

":, Preliminary Labour

Employee Retantion Period

* Less than 5 years

;6-14yrars

',, L5 . 1"9 years

r Over 20 years

Employee Age Analysis

r Below 30 years

* 3L - 40 years

.r 41 - 50 years

* Over 50 years

NP per trnployee

PBT per Employee

Gross Profit per Employee

Sales per Ernploye*

I ts

I ro

ffi:s

Rs. Million

Total number of employees 917

xviii

67.7

Employee Category Analysis

&iffi

U

/t

?
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